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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Strategic report

The di p their gic report for Brake Bros Limited (*Brakes”) for the year ended 30 June 2019. This report analyses the performance
and explains other aspects of the B Group resutts and operations, including strategy and risk management.

Review of the business

The Brakes Group is a large European foodservice business supplying fresh, refrigerated and frozen food products, as well as non-food products and
supplies, to foodservice customers ranging from large customers, including leisure, pub, restaurant, hotel and contract catering groups, to smaller
customers, including independent restaurants, hotels, fastfuodouﬂets schools and hospitals. The Brakes Group largest businesses are in the United

Kingdom (UK), France, and Sweden, in addition to a p in treland, Belg Spain and LL Ing.
The Brakes Group supplies a broad variety of products, including a portfolio of privately branded products, which are g fly delin d through its
distribution networks, consisting of central distribution hubs, satellite depots and its fleet of delivery vehicles. The pnnct,..: tradi ies in the

Group are Brake Bros Limited, M&J Seafood Limited, Wild Harvest Limited, Brakes Foodservice NI Limited, Freshfayre Lu'nmd Pau1eys Produce
Limited, Fresh Direct (UK) Limited, Kent Frozen Foods Limited, Sysco France SAS, Menigo Foodservice AB, Clafra Aktiebolag AB and EKO Fagel
fisk och mittemellan ABEko Fisk AB.

During the year, on 21 June 2019, the Brakes Group sold of 100% of the issued share capital of Brake Bros Foodservice Ireland Limited to Pallas
Foods Limited, a subsidiary of the Sysco Corporation.

S y of and key perf indi

Revenue, operating profit, profit after tax, cash generated from operations and cash balancsamcons&deredtobehekeyperformancammfw
the Brakes Group.

The results for the Brake's Group for the year are set out in the fidated income stat: nt on page 8 and a comparison of the results for the year
ended 30 June 2019 with the year ended 30 June 2018 is as follows:

* Revenue:
- £4,280.7m total for the Brakes Group in the year (2018: £4 182.7m};
- £2,420.5m for the UK (including Ireland) in the year (2018: £2,367.4m);
- £1,293.2m for "Continental Europe®(France, Spain, Belgium and Luxembourg) in the year (2018: £1,273.9m);
- £567.0m for Sweden in the year (2018: £551.4m);

* Operating profit
- £72.7m operating profit before exceptional items in the year (2018: £75.5m);
- £20.1m operating loss in the year (2018: operating profit £43.2m);

« (Loss) / Profit after tax:
- £29.1m loss after tax in the year (2018: £27.3m profit after tax);

» Cash generated from operations:
- £147.1m in the year (2018: £98.4m);

« Cash balance:
-£91.1m at 30 June 2019 (2018: £119.3m).
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Strategic report (continued)

Impact of Covid-19

The circumstances resuiting from Covid-19 are expected to have a significant impact on the trading performance in the final quarter of the year ended
30 June 2020. There is no i diate certainty d the ity and duration of the impact on the business. Following Govemment “lock-down®
measures, introduced In March 2020 in the UK and across Europe which initially saw the closure in many countries in which the group operates of
schools and other educational facilities, pubs, bars, restaurants and hospitality and events, we have seen a marked decline in our tumover
with Q4 2020 levels expected to be significantly below prior year.

We have taken steps to reduce outgoings and to utifise various Government Job Retertion Scheme grants and initiatives to furlough staff where
appropriate. Capital expenditure projects have been deferred and the Company is taking a prudent and vigilant approach on afl expenditure.  Our
business continues to service customers and where possible have shifted our busi model to expand our base to the domestic and retail
sectors in order to offset some of the loss of revenue, utilise our fleet and leverage stock in our networks. The Company is actively looking to expand
its customer reach to domestic supply through the existing distribution networks and in the UK to generate income from supplying our distribution
services to Govemment Agencies.

Principal risks and inti i

The Group has a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects of financial risks for the Company and for-its subsidiary
underlakmgs(seetheonrectofsreponbelowforﬁnﬂnerdetaih) Theprmapalrslsanduneeﬁaxmfaemgmeamm&wprelatetoavanetyof
risks that include competitive risk, the effects of ges in foreigr Y ge rates, interest rates, credit risks, commaodity price risks and
liquiditv risk.

« Competitive risk
The European foodservice distribution industry is fragmented and highly competitive, with local, regional, muttiregional distrit and speciality
oompemnrs New and increasing competitive sources may result in increased focus on pricing and on limiting pnce increases, or may require
inc d disc ing or other concessions. Such compstition or other industry pressures may result in margin erosion and / or make it difficult for the
Group to attract and re1ain customers.

+ The effects of changes in foreign cummency exchange rates
The Group is exposed to foreign curency exchange risks primarily with respect to Euro, Swedish Krona and the Polish Zloty trade purchases.

« Price risk
Due to the nature of our distribution business, the Group is exposed to potential votatility in fuel prices primarily with respect to diesel purch The
price and availability diesel fuel fluctuates due to changes in production, seasonality and other market factors generally outside of our control.

* Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk primarily arises from fioating interest rate long term borrowings owed to parent undertakings.

* Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is the risk that one party to a fi ial i t will cause a fi ial loss to the Group by failing to discharge an obligation.
« Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in ing its obligations iated with financiat liabiities.

The sharp fall in tumover from the impact of Covid-19 is expected to have an immediate impact on the Company's liquidity reserves. The group
manages cashfiow and liquid reserves centrally and have committed to providing sufficient liquidity to manage through the impact on the Company’s
ability to meet its financial commitments.

Apomveabymeeoammnirectnrsaftdsignedonitsbehalibyz

M Ball
Director
22 June 2020



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Directors’ report
The directors submit their annual report and the audited consolidated and parent company financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019.
General information

Brake Bros Limited is a limited company incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled and operating in the United Kingdom. The Company’s
subsidiary undertakings operate in France, Sweden and lreland in addition to a presence in, Belgium, Spain and Luxembourg.

The immediate parent undertaking is Brake Bros Holding | errted a oompany incorporated in England and Wales. The Company's uftimate parent

undertaking and controlling party is Sysco Corporation, a company P d in the Unites States.

Future outtook and going concemn

In assessing whether the fi ial its for the Company and Group should be prepared on the going concem basis, the directors have
considered the future outlook of the C y and of the Brakes Bros Limited Group on a combined basis. The Directors have considered the future
operating profits, cash flows and facilities available. In ugm of the impact of Covid-19 is expected to have on the cashflows and operations, the
Companysulmnatepamnumtanng Sysco Corp has fi that they will continue to support the Company in order to allow the
Company to satisfy its fi ia) obligations in the f of busi at least through to 30 June 2021. Given the continued parental support,

the Directors deem it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis. Further information on this is given in the basis of
preparation paragraph in note 1 to these statements. The directors are satisfied that the Company and Group will have sufficient funds to repay its
liabiliies as they fall due. Consequently, the financial statements of the Company and Group are prepared on the going concem basis.

The immediate impact of Covid-19 has seen a sub ial d in our operati h with much of our customer basis subject to Government
enforced closure in March 2020. The Company and Group has taken rmmed:ate steps to reorganise our operations to continue to serve our
« where applicable and to take action to reduce our cost base and protect the financial resources of the Company and the Group.

Post balance sheet event

Effective May 4, 2020 The Comp: a ial paper prog: for the oﬁssmngshon-tm Sterti i notes that are eligible for

mrdrasemuermeJamHMTmasuvyandBankof Covid C Fi i FacdrtymanaggmgateamununotmaxcaedCGOOOmdmrmcompanytm

borrowed £600 million through the i of notes to the on the ing terms:

Issue Date Amount £m Interest rate Maturity Date

07/05/2020 300.0 0.468% 1770372021

03/06/2020 100.0 0.435% 12/0472021

11/06/2020 100.0 0.454% 26/04/72021

17/06/2020 100.0 0.433% 07/05/2021

The impact of Covid-19 on the future outlook of the business is also set out in Note 29 to the fi iat No other ial events have

occurred since the statement of financial position date which would affect the financial of the Company. .

Dividends

During the year no interim dividends were paid by the Company (2018 £nil)) and the directors do not recommend a final dividend (2018 : £nil).

Directors

The directors of the Companv who were in office durina the vear and up to the date of sionino the financia) 1s. uniess otheswise stated. are

S Whibley

M Ball

A HKama

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions

A aqualifvina third-bartv indemnitv orovision as defined in Section 234 of the C ies Act 2006 is in force for the benefit of each of the directors in

Employment report

The Group aims to keep employ aware of all ial factors affecting them as employ and the performance of the Group and their respective

busir iter ges good ication through regular mesti bety 1t and staff, enabling senior managers to consutt and

ascenam employe&s views on all appropriate matters. This is supplemented by regular briefings, intranet and e-mail bulletins and divisional

h are er ed to partici in the perfo of the Group bv wav of bonus schemes.

The Group employs over 14,000 people. We providi i ining and career devek It is our policy to achieve and maintain

a high standard of h&nh and safety at won( and to everyone, reg: of race, mugnon or sex, and including disabled people where
ble and practi is d in the same way as regard lications for emp g, career develop and promotion. Every

eﬂ‘onismadetohelpwmlmerehabﬂltatlonofanymemjwedduﬁngmeir ploy ‘-t.andtn,. ide support we have an Employee Care

Proaramme.

Health and safety —r————

As a business the Group is strongly committed to to providing a safe and_resp place. "-—work. c “for the" wellbeing of our staff is a key
in-our-drive to-be *a-great place t6 work” and we d this i n at g training and education of ail our employ

working closely with our i providers and equip: t suppliers to e sharing of best practice and leading edge heaith and safety solutions.

Directors Duties

The Dii of the Company are required to act in with a set of general duties which are detailed in section 172 of the UK Companies

Act 2006. A Director of a Company must act in a way that they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company
formebeneﬁtofnsshareholdersasawnole and fairty, and in doing so have regard (along with other matters) to:

the likely consequence of the decnsrons in the long-term;

the interest of the company’s

the need to foster the p sbusmess fati ....awuhm, liers, cust and others;

the impact of the ¢ y's on the i

the desirability of the company maintaining a itation for hngh dards of busil conduct.
The foll 9 1S ise how the Di fulfil their duties:
Risk Management
The Risk Management framework is estabbshed at the Brake Bros Limited group tevel. The Board of Directors of Brake Bros Limited have the
responsibilfity for setting the risk g t in compli with Sysco Cosporation risk policies and applied throughout the
Brake Bros Limited group of panit This fr identifies, monitors, measures and impk its igs to ge and mitigate risk
across the group. Further detail on Financial Risk management are set out further below in our description of Financial Risk Management.
Our people
Our people are the heart of our business. The Company and Grouplscommlmdtobemgar&ponsuhle ployer and ing the perfa
needs and exp i of our empiloy in a fair and P . The Comp andGmupoperamanumberofummpmmomg

employee engagement, heatth and well being.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Directors’ report (continued)

Business relationships i
Our Customers and suppliers are key to our success. We foster long term relationships with our supplier network, fostering close collaboration and

development of sus1=mahle quality chains of supply. Our jonships with Custs isp int to the ongoing success of the business. The
needs and exp jons of our are integral in our business strategy and planning to ensure the Company and Group delfivers to the highest
safety and high quality standards.

C ity and

Food distribution is not only our business — it is also our best opportunity to make a positive difference in the communities where we operate and live.
The Company and Group participates in a ber of C ity based progr to raise money for good causes and provide goods to those in
need.

The Company and group is committed to delivering a better tor . In 2019 the Brake Bros Group of Companies set out its Corp and Social
Responsibility goals and targets to continue to reduce the groups carbon footprint and commi to sourcing inable, ethically sourced produce.
Shareholders

The Company’s ultimate parent pany is Sysco Corporati a Company incorporated in the United States. The Company is aligned to the
strategic vision of the Shareholder and discusses both short term and long term ﬁnanc:al performance and busil j darly with Sysco

management team.

Fi ial risk at
The Group has operations in the UK, the Republic of lreland and Continental Eurcpe including Sweden and has debt financing which exposes it to a
variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange tat&s interest rates, credit risks, commodity price risks and

tiquidity risk.

The Board of Directors of Brake Bros Limited have the responsibility for setting the risk management policies, in comptiance with Sysco Corporation
risk management policies, applied by the Brake Bros Limited group of panit The policies are impl ted by the central group treasury
department that receives regular reports from the ting companies to enable prompt identification of financial risks so that the appropriate actions
may be taken.

(a) Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign g risks,.' ‘wnh espect to the Euro and Swedish Krona although exposure to the Swedish Krona is not
considered material. The Group has certain i perations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Gmups forevgn operations is managed primarily through borrowings denominated in the Euro.

The Group's operations in the UK and Sweden have inventory purchases denominated in currencies other than their functional cumency, such as the
Euro, Polish Zloty and Danish Krone. These invento'y purchases give rise to fureign currency exposure between the functional currency of each entity

and these currencies. The Group enters into foreigr to sell the applicable enmys functional currency and buy
currencies matching the i tory p , which operats aswshﬂowhedg&sofmeeroups ign CL Y il d inventory purchases.
(b) interest rate risk

The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing fiabifities. The Group's interest rate risk primarily arises from floating interest rate
long term borrowings owed to parent undertakings. Interest rate risk is not considered materia! for the Group.

(c) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit fisk. The Group has impl d policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential
customers before sales commence.

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group's funding is defived from b ings and funded from parent and group undertakings that are designed to ensure the group has
sufficient ilable funds for operations and planned expansions. The Group also has access to intercompany funding from parent entities, whom
have access to an extemal Revolving Credit Facility of US$250 million amongst other facilities. The Group also participates in a cash pooling
arrangement with other Sysco Group entities providing additional of local liquidity as and when required.

The sharp fall in tumover from the impact of Covid-19 is expected to have an immediate impact on the Company’s liquidity reserves. The group

manages cashflow and liquid reserves centrally and have committed_to.providing-sufficient-liquidity to-manage throiigh the impact on the Company
————————and Group's-ability to meet it5 financial committments.

(e) Commodity price risk '
The Group is exposed to commodity price risk primarilly with respect to diesel purchases. The Group has in place a risk management programme that
seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by using diesel fuel commodity swaps to hedge against future price
changes.

Independent auditor
Emst & Young LLP shall remain in office unti) the Company or Emst & Young LLP otherwise determine.

Discl of Infe ion to auditors

Each of the persons who are a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

* 50 far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

« the director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Directors’ responsibilities statement
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the di to pi fi ial for each fi | period. Under that law the directors have prepared the group
and parent company financiat statemems in awordanee with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or tass of the Group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable awoummg policies and then appry them wxsstenﬂv‘
» make judgements and accounting
« state wheth licable IFRSs as adi ‘bythe; op Unlonl'ﬂvebeenfolbwed subject to any material d disclosed and explained

in the financial statements; and
-prepamﬂregmupﬁnanaalsﬂ!ememsonmegomgconoembasswuessmsmppmpnatetopmumemtheoompanyandlhegmupwm

continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and exptain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also ible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Company registration number: 02035315

Registered office:
Enterprise House
Eureka Business Park

M Ball Ashfora

Director Kent

22 June 2020 ) TN25 4AG
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Brake Bros Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Brake Bros Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statemems of Brake Bros Limited (‘the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the year ended 30 June
2019 which prise the consoli d income statement, the ki of comprehensive income, the oonso!mted and company
statements of financial position, the consofidated and ts of ges in equity, the L d and pany of cash

flows, and the related notes 1 to 29. Theﬁnanualrepomngframaworkmattnsbeen ied in their preparation is applicabl lawandlmm\a})onfal

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent pany financial as app in
d: with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion;

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the group’s loss for
the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in rd with IFRSs as adopted by the Europ Union in ac

with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in with the requi ts of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion .

We conducted our audit in d: with Inti tional Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibiliies for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are
independent of the Group and Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requi s that are re “toouraudnofﬂmﬁnanua!stmmm‘lsm
the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in with these requi

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to Nate 1 and 29 of the i ial statements, which describes the economic disruption the company is facing as a result of COVID-
19 which is impacting customer demand. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Conclusions relating to going concemn

We have nothing to report in respect of the following mauers in relation to wmeh the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

« the directors’ useofmegomgoonoembassof—- g in the prep of the fi is not approp , or

« the di have not disclosed in the fi ial any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Group's or
the Parent Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the .
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
The directors are responsible for the other information. -

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

lnconnectionwithwraudﬂoﬁheﬁnandaislatemems.wmmrsibiﬁiysmmd&eoﬂmwumaﬁmam.inddngso,mmmﬁmmoﬂwr

information is materially inconsistent with the financial s or our k fedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. {f we identify such material moonsxstemss or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
mlss&tementinﬂ\eﬁnanaal tatements or a isstat ‘oftheoﬂrermforrnaﬂonlfbasedonﬂvewoﬂ(wehaveperfonned we conclude
that there is a iaf of the other i ion, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in dance with appi legal requil

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In Gight of the | dedge and und wding of the Group and the Parent Comp: and its envil it obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified ial i s in the Strategic Report or Directors’ Repont.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

« the Parent Company financial are not in agr t with the ing rds and retums; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

R ibilities of direct

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 5, the di S are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemnal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial the directors are responsible for g the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to confinue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, maﬂmmlabdhmwmmmdmmhsgomwnwmbassdmunﬁngudessmdmmm
to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease « i or have no realistic afternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Brake Bros Limited (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our cobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that inctudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high teve! of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatemant when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financiaj is k d on the Financial Reporting Councif’'s website at
htips:/iwww.frc.org.ul/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s bers those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fuflest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

’{"V\.‘t 4 }ﬁwﬂauj

Lloyd Brown (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

25 June 2020
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Consolidated income staternent

For the year ended 30 June 2019

For the year For the year
ended ended
30 June
30 June 2019 2018
Note £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 4,280.7 41927
Operating costs {4,300.8) (4,149.5)
Operating profit 2 (20.1) 432
Operating (loss) / profit 2 __(20.1) 43.2
Finance costs . K 3 (17.6) (8.2)
Finance income 3 12.9 4.3
Finance cost - net (g) (3.9)
(*.oss) ! Pmﬁt on ordinary actmhes before taxahpn (2&8’ 393
Income tax charge i : 4 {4.3) (12.0)
(I-OSS)IPmﬁt for the yoar affer taxation (29.1) 273
23 T *v' - N s
(LOSS) / Pmﬁt atwbuubp to qvmrs qf m mmpany ;
Quwners of the parent company 21 (29.2) 273
Non—oontrollmg |nterest 2 i . ; 01 -
e Hi (29.1) 273

T T lv'»v' T AR

The notes on pages 16 to 45 farm an mtegral part of lhese financial statements.

The Company hqs elected to takeg the examgqon under 'section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the parent company income statement. The profit

for the parent oqmpany for_the year was £32 5m (2018 £31.8m).
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Brake Bros Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 June 2019

For the year For the year
ended ended
30 June
30 June 2019 2018
Note £m £m
{Loss) / Profit for the year {29.1) 273
Other comprehensive income / {(expense):
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined benefit
pension scheme 7 {2.5) 93
Taxation on items taken directly to other comprehensive
income 4 0.5 (22)
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.0) 741
ftems that may be reclassified to profit or loss .
Cash flow hedges - (losses) / gains arising in the year 21 (1.2) 20
Taxation on cash flow hedges 21 0.1 (0.2)
Currency translation differences 21 35 (2.3)
Total items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 24 {0.5)
Other comprehensive {expense) / ini for the year, Net of tax 04 6.6
Total comprehensive (expense) / income for the year (28.7) 33.9
Total comprehensive (expense)/ income for the period attributable to owners of the parent company (28.7) 339
Total comprehensive (expense) / income for the period attributable to non~controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive (expense) / income for the year (28.7) 339

The notes on pages 16 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated statement of financial position

At 30 June 2019
At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Note £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 6 188.3 201.3
Intangible assets 7 1221 117.6
Property, plant and equipment 8(a) 393.2 3710
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) 0.3 1.5
Trade and other receivables 1" 83 N
Deferred tax assets 19 40.0 3438
7522 7262
Current assets
Inventories 10 239.4 220.2
Trade and other receivables 1" 793.0 803.9
Cash and cash equivalents 12 91.1 1193
Current income tax assets 14 2.2 2.2
1,125.7 1,145.6
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 (138.2) (138.0)
Trade and other payables 13 (840.0) (806.5)
Current income tax liabilities 14 - (0.3)
Provisions 18 (2.9) (4.2)
(981.1) (949.0)
Net current assets 144.6 196.6
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 (45.0) (42.7)
Retirement benefit obligations 17 (111.9) (108.7)
Deferred tax liabilities 19 (24) 2.8)
Provisions 18 (29.8) (31.7)
(189.1) \ (185.9)
Net assets 707.7 736.9
Equity
Share capital 20 54 54
Share premium 30.8 308
Other reserves 21 365.0 362.6
Retained earnings 21 306.5 338.1
Total equity o 707.7. 7369

The notes on pages 16 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 45 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

™ Ball
Director
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Company statement of financial position

At 30 June 2019 .
At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Note £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-cumrent assets
Goodwil 6 28.2 28.2
Intangible assets 7 20.7 240
Property, plant and equipment 8(a) 156.5 1589
Deferred tax assets 19 35.0 39.0
Investments in subsidiaries 9 4148 392.8
655.2 6429
Current assets
Inventories 10 96.1 81.0
Trade and other receivables 11 823.8 7479
Cash and cash equivalents 12 19.1 52.7
939.0 881.6
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 (261.0) (259.4)
Financial liabilities - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) - 0.9
Trade and other payables 13 (613.0) (567.6)
Provisions 18 {1.1) {2.1)
(875.1) (828.2)
Net current assets 63.9 534
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 (8.9) {(104)
Retirement benefit obligations 17 (59.4) (59.9)
Provisions 18 {22.3) (20.3)
(30.6) {90.6)
Net assets 628.5 605.7
Equity
Share capital 20 54 54
Share premium 30.8 308
Other reserves 21 390.6 3914
Retained eamings 21 201.7 178.1
Total equity 628.5 605.7

The notes on pages 16 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 8'to 45 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2020 and were signed on its behaff by:

M Ball
Director
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Brake Bros Limited ;
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Aftributable to owners of the parent company

Share Non-
premium Other Retained controlfing
Share capital account reserves eamings Total interests  Total equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 July 2017 54 308 363.1 303.7 703.0 - 703.0
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 273 273 - 273
Other comprehensive income / {expense)
Cash flow hedges - - 20 - 20 - 20
Taxation on cash flow hedges - - (0.2) - (0.2) - (0.2)
Currency translation differences 21 - - (2.3) - (2.3) - (2.3)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 93 93 93
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 4 - - - (2.2) (2.2) - (2.2)
Total other comprehensive income / (expense) - - (0.5) 71 6.6 - 6.6
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - . (0.5) 344 33.9 - 33.9
Balance at 30 June 2018 54 30.8 362.6 338.1 736.9 - 736.9
Comprehensive (expense) / income
(Loss) for the year - - - (29.2) (29.2) 01 (29.1)
Other prehensive i / (expense) . - -
Cash flow hedges - - (1.2) - (1.2) - (1.2)
Taxation on cash flow hedges - - 0.1 - 0.1 - 0.1
Long term incentive plan charge (0.4) {0.4) (0.4)
Currency translation differences 21 - - 35 - 35 - 35
Actuarial (losses) on defined benefit pension
scheme . 17 - - - (2.5) (2.5) - (2.5)
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 19 - - - 0.5 0.5 - 0.5
Total other comprehensive income / (expense) - - 24 (2.4) - - -
Total comprehensive in I/ (exp ) - - 24 (31.6) (29.2) 0.1 (29.1)
Balance at 30 June 2019 54 30.8 365.0 306.5 707.7 0.1 707.8

The notes on pages 16 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Company statement of changes in equity

Attributable to owners of the parent

company
Share
premium Other Retained
Share capital account reserves eamings Total equity
Note £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 July 2017 54 30.8 390.4 139.9 566.5
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 318 318
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Cash flow hedges - - 1.3 - 1.3
Taxation on cash flow hedges - - {0.3) - (0.3)
Actuarial gaions on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 7.8 78
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 19 - - - (1.4) (1.4)
Total other comprehensive income / (expense) - - 1.0 6.4 74
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - 1.0 38.2 39.2
Balance at 30 June 2018 54 30.8 3914 178.1 605.7
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 25 25
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Cash flow hedges - - (1.0) - (1.0)
Taxation on cash flow hedges - - 0.2 - 0.2
Long term incentive plan charge - - - (0.7) (0.7)
Arising on Business Combinations under common control - - - 17 17
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 0.1 0.1
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 19 - - - - -
Total other comprehensive income - - {0.8) 1.1 0.3
Total comprehensive income - - (0.8) 23.6 22.8
54 30.8 330.6 201.7 628.5

Balance at 30 June 2019

The notes on pages 16 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2019

For the year ended 30 For the year ended 30
June 2019 June 2018

Note £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 22 1471 98.4
Analysed as:
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 207.0 1113
Exceptional items (59.9) {12.9)
Interest paid (5.5) (4.4)
Income tax paid (5.9) (10.9)
Net cash generated from operating activities 135.7 83.1
Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (67.3) (27.6)
Purchase of intangible assets (29.8) (23.1)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 6.5 24
Sale of interest in subsidiary, net of cash transferred 0.3 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 23 (iii) (0.3) (41.5)
Net cash used in investing activities (90.6) (89.8)
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
Payments to parent undertakings (59.6) (16.6)
Payments from related undertakings . 23
Repayment of extemal borrowings - (0.3)
Finance lease capital repayments (20.6) (18.9)
Net cash (used in) / from financing activities (73.6) (33.5)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (28.5) (40.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 2018/ 1 July 2017 12 1193 1604
Effects of exchange rate changes 0.3 (0.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2019 / 30 June

91.1 119.3

2018 12

The notes on pages 16 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Company statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2019

For the year ended 30 For the year ended 30
June 2019 June 2018

Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 22 97.2 60.6
Analysed as:
Cash generated from operations before exceptionat items 115.1 66.6
Exceptional items {17.9) _(6.0)
Interest paid (0.4) 2.1)
Net cash generated from operating activities 96.8 58.5
Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21.4) (12.2)
Purchase of intangible assets (5.0) 6.1)
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 21 17
Proceeds from sale of business under Common control 1.7 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (30.4)
Net cash used in investing activities (22.6) (47.0)
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
Capital contribution to subsidiary company (22.0) -
Payments (to) / from parent undertakings (89.0) 9.3
Payments (to) / from related undertakings {0.2) 0.7
Loans from / (to) group undertakings 19.8 (13.1)
Payments (to) group undertakings (9.3) (54)
Finance lease capital repayments (7.1) {6.8)
Net cash (used in) / from financing activities (107.8) (15.3)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (33.6) (3.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 2018 / 1 July 2017 12 52.7 56.5
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2019 / 30 June
2018 12 ‘191 52.7

The notes on pages 16 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

Genera! information .

Thesa financial are the financial of Brake Bros Limited ("the Group™) and the parent company financial statements of Brake Bros Limited (Tthe

Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2019. Thess financial statements wers authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2020. For practical reasons, the Group and
Company prepares its financiat statemends to the Saturday clasest to the Comparry reference date of 30 kune.

The financia) statements have been presented in Sterfing (£) which is aiso the functional currency of the Company.

Significant accounting policies N
The Company's principal accounting poficies adoptad in the preparation of these financial statements are set out befow. These poficies have been consistently applied, uniess otherwisa
stated.

ausdwewwmmdmgm

consobdated financial statements have been prepared in with i Fmanaal Reporti as adopted by the European Union (I[FRSs as adopted by the
EU)IFRIC ions and the C ies Act 2006 to i mmtmmmwmmmmmmmm
‘convention and financial assets and financial Gabilities (inchuding derivative instruments) at fair vatue through profit or loss,

firanciat m«mmmmdmmmmmnmmmmmm
Wmmmdmmmsmmmmmammu or dty, or areas where are
to the befow within critical i

tn assessing whether the finandia) statements for the Company and Group should be prepared on the going concem basis, the directors have considered the future outiock of the Company
and of the Group on a combined basis. The Directors have considered the fulure operating results, cash flows and tacilities available.

The immediate impact of Covid-19 has seen 8 [3-T- volumes with much of our customer base subject to Govemment enforced dosure in March 2020. We
mmmvgmwr@mmmvm”mmnmmmmmmﬁmmwmm Capital expenditure projects have
been defested and the Company and Group is taking @ prudent and vigilant app on afl to service and where possible we have
smﬁaaaurmmmmmMammmmmmmhmwmamdmmdmmmmmmmmM
networks.  The Company and Group are actively looking to expand their customer reach to domestic supply through the existing distribution networks and in the UK to generate income
from our sefvices to Agencies.

The Comparry and group il with other Sysco Group entities providing additional sources of locat Equidity as and when required. This
mmmmmmmmmmrmam As of 22 une 2020 there are no drawings on this facility.

Effactive May 4, 2020 The Company established & commercial paper program for the purposs of issuing shorterm, unseaured Sterfing-denominated aotes that are digible for purchase
under the Joint HM Treasury and Bank of England Covid Corporate Financing Facility in an aggregate amount not to excesd £600.0 mifion. The Comperny has borrowed £600 million
through the issuance of notes pursuant to the program on the following terms:

Issuo Date Amount £n  Interestrate  Maturity Date

Q71052020 300.0 0.488% 1770072021

0370672020 100.0 0.435% 12/047202%

11/06/2020 100.0 0.454% 26/0472021

17/06/2020 100.0 0.433% 070572021

In light of the impact of Covid-19 is expected to have on the cashfiows and aperations of the Company, the Company's ultimate parent Sysco & that
mﬂmwmmmwmmmmnmm:&fmmmmmmdummmstmmmrn30June2021 Thel)crecwsare
satisfied that the uftimate parent undertaking Sysco Corporation has the ability to provide this support, shoudd it be required. in reaching this they the that
smwwmmmhmmmmmmmm mmmdmmwmvmmwmmnwmmmﬂuvum
decfines, caducing the through the fion of hiring froezes, wu i - It has aiso

liquidity position in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. They include: a signif redy in capital i oﬂ.hesm:e pmwwnmmaJSIS

billion under its revolving credit facility; and recently issuing $US4 billion of new debt. mmammmmmmmﬁwmmwmmwm
under its most downside forecast scenario and before any further mitigating actions it may take.

mmmmwmmmu@wmmmwwmmmm&

Changes tn accounting policies and discloswes
New and and

mmwmwmmlmswmamlmssmusmw and for annual perfods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the for financial and hedge The objective
dmmsmmmmmumﬁmmdﬁmmwﬁmﬁmnmmmmmwmlmmmemmnmmw
uncestsirty of an entity's future cash flows,

These have been no matertal impacts on the Company's financial statements as a result of adopting (FRS 9 from 1 July 2018,

Impact of new standard adapted - FRS 15 from with

On1Juu2018 mmmlmlswmmmm (gs amanded in Aprit 2016) with no significant impact on its financia position or results of
using the ition method end without using the practical expedients far modified contracts in IFRS 15.C5(c). This method requires, if the impact of adoption
-memMMMdmmmwdmmmmmmwm

lFl&ﬁm:mﬁsmammnwmmhmmmmmmmmmmmmmwmmmmmmm
performance cbfigation within the contract, the ion price to each dstinct and revenuo when the
MmmmumhwmdWﬂmmwmmm%mmmmmmmwma
cumulative effect transitional method.

Mwmmmwumtmmwmmmmlmsw while prior period amounts have not been restated and continue to be reported under IAS 18, There
was no adjustment required to the opening retained eamings batance on 1 July 2018 and no materiat impact on revenue recognition for the year endin 30 June 2020 as a result of adopting
{FRS 15.

Once a contract has been identifiod, mmnpmyrumgﬂmmmmmdﬁmmmsahsﬁed which is the point at which control of the goods aro transferred to its

e CUISIONTICFS | merﬁﬁmy—&m ] mbmmmamm&wmmmmmmmmmmwmm
title and physical i to tho The timing of sati: ion is not subject to significant judgment 8s goods are usually defivered
amsmedfwanﬁemepammm

Now and and ssued but not yet cffoctive

mmmwmmmi&mmmyﬂmwmmmdmdmc«wswwwiﬁdmﬁyﬂmmeﬂwmmw:
finandial statements gre disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Imism(wwhmpmmmami January 2019);

IFRIC23 L (not yet by the EU; effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018);
wammmms-zunque(mmmwzom These improvements (required for reporting pesiods beginning on o after 1 tanuary 2018) indlude;
- IAS 12 Income Taxes

With the exception of [FRS 16, the Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these new standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the Company's financial
Statements In the pertod of Initial application. The impact of adopting IFRS 16 is set out below.

IFRS 18 Leases

IFRS 18va’llbaeﬁwﬁwlnmaCanpanfswmhmmmwmmmmbmmmwmmwmmmﬂmm
required effective date for periods begirming or or after 1 January 2018, The new standard sets out the 3 for the of leases
hmmmmnmmwmmmca ining whether an contains a lease’ in its entirety. Mmmﬂwﬁmmmmmmm

simitar to current practice. Under the new standard the concept of assessing a fease contract 8s either an operating or finanoe lease is
Wwammmmom:mmmmmm Under this new model, substantiafly afl lease contracts will result in a lesses acquiring a
right-of-use asset and creating a comesponding lease ability. The right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the lease term and interest will be chargad on the lease liability over the same
oeriod, N

Adapting IFRS 16 will resutt in a material change to way the Company’s Balance Sheet is reparted, ummdmmwmmmﬁmnmwmmumd
mmmwmmmmmmmummmmmmm the Group has leases, fleets of teased
defivery vehicles and car leases provided to y's car sch mast of which will also be recognised on the Batance Sheet.

The Income will also be i o with lease redating to previous IAS 17 operating leases being replaced by a depreciation charge arising from the right-of-use assets
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Brake Bros Limited
A ] report and fi fal
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies {continued)

The Comparty ptans to adopt the new standard using the modified with an to equity on 1 Jdy 2019. Under this approach. the Company has elected to
measure the initial right-ofuse assets ot an amount equal to the tease liahdities on the date of adoption. The leasa abilities will be measured as the present value of future lease
payments. The right-of-use assets wilt be adjusted to take into account any prepaid jease payments and incentives refating to the relevant leases that were recorded on the batance sheet
at 30 June 2019,

The fallowing practical expedients shall be elected in adopting IFRS 16:

» Not to reassess whether a current IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 lease condract is, or contains a tease at the date of initial application
« Apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of assets with simitar characteristics

* Not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease Eabilities for leases which end within 12 months of initial application:
« Exctude initiat direct costs from the measurement of right-af-use assets at the adoption date.

The foltowing exemptions shall be appied in adopting IFRS 16:

Short-tenm leases. 12 months or less are accounted for in profit and loss
Lowwvatuc leases, assets less than £5,000, are gecourted for in orofit and loss

Dusing 2019 the Company carried ot a delailed assessment of existing leases and other using &l lease i ion and i around lease
terms and payments to identify any lease amangements that would fafl within scope of IFRS 16 and to quantify the impact.

The expetted impact of applying IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach on 1 July 2019 s set out below:
Recognition of lease Eabifities of £349.9m.

of lsase for ing leases with leass inferest expense and depraciation of the right-af-use asset. It Is anticipated that prafit before tax will not

Basis of consolidation

{a) Subsidianes

hese financial the financiat of the Company and afl is icti s entities where the
substance of the refationship batween the Group and the entity thatitis by the Group. idiark maﬂmhes(mdwqwmm)mm

the Group has control. Controd is echieved when the Group has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights, to variable retum from its involvament with the investee; and has the
ability to use its power to affects its retums, Subsidiaries are fully consalidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Umfmnmmngpduesmmtmmmcm s batans gains on i between Group companies are eliminated.

Unreafised losses are atso efimis urdess the orovides idenca of an impai dmasamsfmad.

{b) Accounting for business combinations

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to accoun for bsiness inati The o i for the isition of a idiary is the fair vatue of the assets

Irms!ened mm-mmmmummwmcm mmmmmmmmmotwmmmwmmhmamm
ion-refated costs are as incurred. assets acquired and fiabifities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are

mmmamwmmm ssition date. On an isition-by- isition basis, the Group recognises arry non-controlling intesest in the acquiree either at fair vatve or

atthe share of the it net assets. .

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-contralling interest in the acquires and the acquisition-date fair vatue of any provious equity interest in the acquireo over
mmmmmmsmmmmmemmmruasmmmllmsumwmmmvanndmenaassasdmmmwmmmed

a bargain s ised directly in the of income.
For transactions with entities under control the itabl ion from IFRS 3 2 [ it s taken and the method of ing is used. The
Identifiable assets and iabilities are &t their pr canmying valu goodwill, ary (le. between the cost

umwmmmdmmm)mmhmmmmmwmmmdmmmmmmmmm
business combination between entities under common control occurred.

N interests in are i from the Group's equily thesein. mwmﬂwﬂwmﬂmaemmﬂpim
entitfing their holders to a proportionate share of net assats upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair vatue or at the share of the fair vatue of
the acquiree’s identifichle net assets. mmwwammemmwlm“wmmmmmm
Subsequent to mwummmdeMMbMMdmmmma gr phus the interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total interests even f this results in the non-controlling inferests having a deficit batance.

(c} Transactions with non-controfing inferests

The Group treats i with interests as s ‘with equity owners of the Group. For from interests, the between any
- consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity, Gwswhssmwmmuﬂxnmm“
also recorded in equity.

Whalm&umc&satonavsmmdusgmﬁuanmﬂmms.mmmmmmmmmnfwmmﬂndwmmmem
Mmmmmmumwmmmhm for e retained interest in the associate, joint venturs o financial
- asset. In addition, any amounts ised in ather 3 mmmammmmfwasﬂm&mmmwdmmm
or ligbilities. This may mean that amounts L ised in other income are en“— income

If the ownership in an associate is reduced bul significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts i i in other ive income are
ified to the income where i .
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Brake Bros Limited
A ! report and fal
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue

The Growup generates revenue primarily from the distribution and sate of food and retated products to its afl revenum is tized at the point in time in which the
product is defivered to the austomer. mmmmmmmau-mem Mmﬂmﬁmmm Theva:ahle
consideration s based on amounts known at the time the performance obligation is satisfied and, therefore, require minima j Revenus is at the price net

of any sales incentives, rebates or discounts which is agreed at contract inception.

Buvina income

Buying income is received from suppliers as a discount against the cost of products and sesvices purchased. Discownts can take the form of banded overtiders eamed on purchase levets,

marketing income, or product specific rebates. The credit is recognised in the income statement either against direct purchase cost or ather costs and inventory is revalued to reflect the

Mmmmmmswmummwmwmmmammmwmmauesmommmmsm
tams and based on

Exceptiona) items ¢

Whaere items aof income and expensa inctuded in the iy ing losses in respect of businesses exited or being oited are considered to be material and / or
MNWWMMWMWMMNMSMmM financizt These items are ified &s i items,
The Group considers the size and nature of an item both indivi and when with simitar items, when considering whether it is materiat.

Property, plant and equigm
mewammwww and

erwmhwmmwmmmmmmmmmdmmmmmmmmmmmm
asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Group charges borrowing costs to the assets,

Subsequent costs are inctuded [n the assat’s carrying amount or racognisad as a separate asset, as appropriate, ordy when it is prohatie that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be refiably measured. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statement during the financiad
period In which they are incurred.

No deprecition is provided on freehold tand.

Depreciation is provided on afl ather property, plant and equipment to write down their cost or, MMMMﬁv&mmm mw-gmmmmdma
fives.

ravision to their estimated residual values on a straight line basis over the perinds of their esti or revised, usefd h These lives are
bex:

Freehold buildings - between 17 and 40 years

Leasehold buitdings - the period of the lease or 40 years whichever is the shorter

Motor vehicles - between 5 and 12 years

Plant and equipment - between 3 and 40 years

Information tachnotogy hardwara - between 3 and 5 years

Asset lives and residuai values are reviewed each financial period,
An asset’s carying amount is written de [ i toits amount if the asset's carrying amoundt is greater than its estimatad recoverable amount.

Profits and tosses on are ined by ing the with the carrying amount and are used within the income

Non-curvont assots held for sato

Non-current assets dlassified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carying amount and fair vatue less costs to sefl. Non-current assets are dassified as held for sodo if their
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condilion is met only when tho sale is highly probabe and the asset is ovailable for
immediate sale in its present itio: must be to the saie which shoutd be expected to take place within one year from the date of redassification.

Investments In subsidiaries
Investments in subsidisries freld as non-curtent assets are accounted for at cast less any provision for tmpairment in vatue. i the directors consider that the fair vatue of investments in
subsidiaries are below their carrying vatue then a provision for impaiment would be made.
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Brake Bros Limited
A 1 report and fi £l
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

{a) Goodwil »
Gm-ﬂlwusansmemdmmdmmmmmmmdmmsmdmmmmdmm y &t the date of

Goodwif) on of is included in assety. Goodwill i not subject to annual amortisation taa is nstead tested annually for impairment and carried at cost

less accumutated impainment tosses. tmpairment losses on goodwill are nat reversad.

Goodwill is afiocated to cash generating units for the purpose of & it testing. The on is made to those cash ing units that are to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

{b) Computer software
Acquired computer sofiware ficences are capitafised as an intangible asset on the basis of the costs incumred to acquire and bring into use the specific software. Direclly attributable costs
associated with the development of software that are expected to generate future ic benefits are capitalised as part of software.

‘Where software costs are capitafised they are amortised using the straightine basis to write them down to their estimated reafisabie vatue over their estimated useful economic fives,
'which are considered to be between three and five years.

The residuat vatue and usefd econamic fife are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate at each statement of financial position date.

{c) Customes contracts end relationships

Customer fists and and i ips are acquired of as part of a busk i

For those Bsts and acquired assetis the basis of the costs to acquire the customer lists and cusiomer
mwmmmwmmmawmmm

For those lists and and acquired as part of a business combination, the fair value of the asset is recognised at the date of the acquisition, in
accordance with IFRS 3.

Customer lists and a straight fine basis aver their expected useful aconomic lives, which are considerned to be between 3 and 11
mmsammmmmmmmmmmmdmywmmnm

{d) Brands

Brands are ecquired oras partof a i ination. For those brands aoquired an i ible asset is ts on the basis of the costs to aoquire the

brands together with any directly attributable costs of acquiring the asset. For those brands acquired a3 part of a business combination, the fair valus of the asset is recognised at the date
«of the acquisition, in accordance with (FRS 3.

Brands are amortised an a straight-fine basis over their expectad usafid economic fives, which are considerad to range fram 10 to 25 years. Thesa are assumad to have no residual value
at the end of their expected useful econormic tife.

Asset lives and residual vatues are reviewed during each financial period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Impaimment of non-financiz assets
hsmmmmn\ﬁ‘mwmlﬂemwWmmmmml&wmbmAMMmewmmmmh
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be lossis for the amount by which the asset’s
canrying amount exceeds its amount. The mmsmh@udma&a‘:&v&nl&wssbsﬁ)wﬂ@nhmhhmdw
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are cash fiows (cash units),

Inventorics

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net raalisable vatue. mmmhmmmmc‘m direct costs and that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net sefling price less afl estimated costs of completion and costs
to be incusred in marketing, seling and distribution.

Trade recotvables

Trade recetvables are recognised Initiafly &l fair vatue and cost less for A for whan there is
mmmmmﬂmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmd financial oflhem probability that the
debtor will enter and default or dalinquency in payments (more than 2 months overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is

mmmmdmwmbmmmmmmmmmmmammmmmmmmm
Imer&ratn.Thu:myhgamoumduamsmwmmdammwmwmmdhwhwhwmlm
statement within direct purchase cosl. When a trade receivable is uncollectabde it Is written off against the trade ‘account. of amounts
previmisty written off are credited in the consolidated income statemem.

Cash and cash equivaients
mmmmmmmmmmdwmmmm)mhmmmmmmsmmm with ariginal of
twee months or less held for the purpose of meeting shori4erm cash Bank are itn current fabiities to the extent that there is no right of offset with cash
batances.

Current and deferred income tax
msmmmmuxawwsmhmmlmmehmdmwmmwmﬂvﬁymmmmdhmdmusdnnMa:nwnmtwwixﬂy
evaluztes positions taken in tax retums with respect to situations in which i tax ion is subject to i on the basis of
‘amounts expectad to be paid to the tax autharities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the Eabifity method, an temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and Eabifities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferved income tax is nat accourted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or Gabiity in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit o loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the date of the statement of financial position and are expected to apply when the retated deferred income tax asset is realised. Deferred income tax is measured on an undiscounted basis.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxabie profits will be available against which the can b
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1. Accounting policies [continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benstt obigations
The Group has both defined benefit and defined contriution pension plans.

Defined benefi pension plans

ng the to IAS 19 WMmmmmMMmmmﬂ the Group has adopted an accounting policy whereby actuarial
gains and losses for defined benefit pension schemes are taken through the income in full each period, and the full deficit an an IAS 19 basis is
mcluded within the consofidatad statement of fnancial pesition.

tn the UK the Group operates a defined benefit funded pension scheme covering a number of its employoes. The scheme is a contracted oul defined benefit scheme, providing final satary
related benefits accrued for each year of service. The scheme was made fully paid up at 31 December 2003 and no fusther benefits are sccruing 10 members subsequent to this date. in
addition, in Brakes Continental Eurape: Division and Sweden the Group is liable for certain post employment benefits which meet the criteria of a defined benefit plan. These obligations are
of an unfunded nature.

The charpe in the consolidated income statement in respect of the defined benefit pension plans comprises a net interest expense / income cadcutated as the product of the net defined
benefit Eability / asset and the discourt rate as determined st the beginning of the period. The net interest expenso / income is recogrised in finance costs / income. Past-service costs are
recognised immediately in income.

The Gabifity recognised in the statemerd of financial position in respect of the defined benefit pension stheme is the present vatue of the defined benefit obligation at the date of the
statement of financial position less the fair vatue of the plan assets. The independent achuary, mmwwmmwmwmmmm

Mmmwmmm The present vatue of the defined benefit by the future cash flows using irtesest
rates of high-quality corporste bonds that hay to maturity ap mmmammmww
The defined benefit obiigation has been calculated by the scheme actuary for each reporting date. using the projected unit credit method and assumptions agreed with the Group

pension
{sea note 17 to the finandial statements). ,

Am:aialgammdmmmmm(mmummmmwwmmmmwwwhm
assumptions. Actuartal gains and losses are recognised in full, in the pesiod they oceu, in the statement of comprehensive incom:

Defined contribution plans

Fadd‘vmmhmmm&wpays ibutions to i pension plans on a contractua basis. The Group has no further payment abligations once the
contributions have been paid. The ara Fsad as an mmmmmm

Prwusntsamﬁ!medfwlsgaﬂy h iggati mmmmd&nmﬂdﬁmﬂmﬂm the settlement of which is likely to require outflow of
mwmmum@mmm ‘Where materia to the financial [ over the life of their expected cash flows,

Trade payables and other payables

Trade payabies are non interest-bearing and are stated at amortised cast.

Leases.
Lmseinumnhsmmnyaﬂmtheﬁsksmmump&emmm&mmmﬁmmﬁmmmmwuerﬁmtmlwsesmindwedm

the consclidated siatement of financial position as property, plant and equipmen al their fair value, or if lower, the present vatug of the mini lease ined at the
inception of the lease and are deprociated over the sharter of their useful lives and the lease term. The capital element of future rentsls is treated as a liability, Raudsmawmnd
between reductions of the respective fiabifities and finance charges, which are deait with under finance costs in the consalidated income statement.

Rentats paid under operating feases (those leases where a significant postion of the risks and rewards of ownership are rotained by Lho lessar) are charged to the consalidated income
statement on a straight-4ine basis over the term of the fease even if the payments are not made on such a basis. Benefits received and reccivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease
aro similarly spread on a straight-ino basis over the lease term. Provisions are made for onerous leases up until the date at which management beliovo the lease will be terminated o
when economic benefit wit be resumed.

Foraign currencies

Itemns inctuded in the financial of the Group's using the cumency of the primary in which the operates
(the functional currency’). The financiat are mmmhmesmm

Foreign curency are into the i using the exchange rates prevafling af the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in

fumig\umemsmmlmmmwmmmmdmmmmmdmwmmdﬁmm Differences arising on
MMWWWMMWMWmmmhmxwm&ﬂmWGWmemm

The income of foreign are Into stesiing at montly average exchange rates for the Euro and Swedish Krona at 1.13 (2018: 1.13) and 11.84
{2018 11, 19)mspa:m;ymmmmﬁmmwmmmmmmmmmdmeMdmmm112(2013-113)(:1
Euros and 11.78 (2018: 11.82) for Swedish Krona. Cn arising from the ion of the net i in foreign and of

designated as hedges of such are taken to ' equity. These are di as a separats component of shareholders’ equity within other
reserves.

Goodwill and tair vatue adjustments arising on tha acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and Liabilities of the foreign entity and transiatod at the dosing rata.

Bosvowings and finance costs
Borrowings ere recognised initiatly at fair vatue (being the issua tess attril ion costs.
ings are a i mmmmmmmmsa@mum e of any ion costs, The isation is
recognised in finance costs. lion costs are the expected term of the refated financial instnments.
An i i o i mwmmwammmawmdwmm .

Mmmmuasmmwmmmemrnsmmwmmmmmmmxyummanmmmmmdrm
position date.

Finance incomo
Fnance income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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1. Accounting pobicies {continued)

Financial assets
msmmmwmmmmmmwmﬂmmmsnﬁmmmhmmﬁmm-aam

Loans and receivables gre non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are inchxied in curent assets, except for
mmmmmﬂmmmmmmmmmuwmmmummmmmmmmmmmmm
other receivables’ and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.”

Derfvative financial instruments

The Group uses desivative financial & ey swaps to hedge the desel price and intarest rate caps to manage the interest rate risk on interest payments. The
Group does not use devivative financiat for sp i
Wmmmmmmmmamammummwwmmfwmmmwm@mmm@u
toss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if 50, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group v as either:

- hedges of a parti risk i witha ised asset or Bability or & highly probable forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge)

- hedges of & net i in a foreign ion (net is hedge).

The Group documents at or near to the i ion of the ion the: i ip between hedging instnuments and hedged items, as well as its risk managerment objectives and strategy
for undestaking various hedging transactions, The Group atso both at hedge ion and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derfvatives that are used in

mmmmmwnmm.gmhmmdwm

'
The fair vatue of derivative instruments used for hedging are in note 16 (b). on the hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown in note 22. The full
fair vatue of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-curment asset or liabiiity when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than one year and as a current asset or liabiity
‘when ths remaining maturity of the hedged itern s tess than one year.

(8) Cash flow hedges
mmmmdmwmmmmmmMmmwmsmmmbmmmmmmagahahsrsaﬁm
tothe in finance costs - net’ in the consalidated income statement.
AmoumsMWMMWWMMWMEWhmmmmWMMMUW The gain or Joss relating to the effective
portion of interest rate swaps hedging variahble rate i s inthe income within finance costs - net”. The gain or loss relating to the ineflective
portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate is i inthe incame within finance costs - net’.
WMsmmmurssdd.crvmuanhmgsmWmmmmhmmmmmwk&mmmmwmmamm
‘equity and is recognised when the forecast in the income When a forecast transaction & no longer expected to occur, the
cumutative gain or loss that was reposted i equity is i tothe I income within Yinanca costs - net.

(b) Net investment hedge

Hedges of nata in foreign ions are for similarty to cash flow hedges.

mmuwmmmmmmwmmumwsmmw The gain or loss retating to the i portion is
amsnﬁdatadn-mmesmmm\nmnﬁrmm net. &mWMWmemwhmmwmmm%mms

pamaﬂydismseddorsdd.

Share capita)

Where the Company issues shares or ather financial instruments, these financial instruments are dassified as a financial Gabiity, financial asset or equity according to the substance of the
arits parts. MMMMMNdmmmMmMMMmhmmmm

Dividends or interest arising on such finandal i are ing to the of the financia i

‘Share based payments.

Certzin Group employees are members of a share based payment amangement provided by Sysco Corporation. Cash settied share based to certain at

the tair vatue of the equity instruments at the grant date using a Black-Scholes option pricing moded. mwmammmm&wmmmmmm

reflect te vesting as it occurs over the requisite service period over the duration of the award. The requisite sesvice period Is generally the period which the employee is required to provide

service in exchange for the award. Anww&wmmlmmmwmdmm At each balance shest date until the Hability is setfled, and at the date of
Settiement. the fair vatue of the liabifity Is remeasured with any changes In fair valy

Crttica Ind
The Group makes the future. The resulting acoounting estimates will, WMMMWMMWMMJWM
&eysumdmnmmmnamaMWMﬁmmmmmmmdmmmmmmmwwmw

The Group tests annuafly whether goodwill has suffered any foss, in with the policy stated above. The amourts of cash rating units
{CGUs) have been determined based on vatue-inuse caladations. These calcutations require the use of estimates in relation to future cash fows and suitable discount rates as disclosed
in nots 6 io the financial statermernts. Actuat outcomes coud vary from thass estimates.

A sensitivity analysis has on the key i used for ing the goodwill. The directors’ - of the i and it analysis are
mmmsmmwmm

(b) impaiment review of brands and

lnmmmmmmwmmwmmmmmmmmumm and i ips 1o see if they have suffered

any impairment,

A sensitivity analysis has been on the key iors wsed for ing the brands and The directors have concluded that for the UK

and Ireland, suenmammnmmmmmmmdwmhmdmmmnsMMMmmm
possible changes in key assumptions which would cause the carrying amourt of brands and and ips to exceed the vak

(d&mbvaem defined pension

mumwwmmm“mmmanmmssmaux«mmmmofz_ax wmm@mmmmmmolazmmmmu

detenmining the vahuation is the mortafity i the life in years of = retifing was 1 yaar higher or lower than that usad in the vatuation (he retirement
benefit obfigation would have been approximately £11.3m higher or lower,
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

(d) tncoms taxes - deferred taxation

Thegmmlssuneummnaum!sm juaris i igni s required in determining the group's provision for deferred taocition. There are certain terms for which
the ultimats tax s The group i WmmnmmWMmmammmmmMMwmm
WhesmwmdmesemmsuaﬁsmmmMMmmmmmwmmmmmmMmmmmmmsm
the period in which such determination is made,

A defarred tax asset of £2.0m (2018:£3.0m) is recognised in respect of certain UK tax losses. The key assumption used in recognition of this asset is based upon a track record of
generating taxable profits over the past five years and management's forecasts for taxable profits for the next five years, and the assumption that the tosses will be availahle for utifisation.
If the tax losses were subsequently found not to be avaitable for utilisation against taxable profits then the defesed tax asset would no longer be recognised and there would be a charge of
£2.0m (2018 in income taxes in the consolidated income statement.

(e) Funding, iquicly, going concem end covenant complenco

The Grotp actively maintains a mixture of fong-term and short-tarm facilities that are designed to ensure the Group has sufficient avaitable funds for i and planned
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's fiquidity reserve (borrowing faciities available and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash fiow. The Group
maintains bquidity through available cash reserves and borrowing facilities avaitabie primarily through Sysco Corporation group undertakings.

{n assessing whether the financiat statements for the Group are prepared on the going concern basis, the Directors have considered the future outtock of the Group. Having considered the
future operating profits, cash flows and faciities avaiadle to the Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient funds to repay its liabdities as they fall due.
Consequently, the financiat statements are prepared an the going concem basis.

() Exceptional cost palicy

The Group's accounting policy for exceptional items requires items of income and expense that are considesed to be material and outside the normal course of business to be disdosed

Whmwmwmmmm requires in retation to and other costs which require classification
between exceptional items and those inciored in the normal course of business. Note 2 to the finandal statemnents describes the nature of the Group's items. Cestain

costs within ‘business change costs’ and transitional dual nnﬁrgmstshnnmwhhin ‘estructuring of the UK distritertion network’ require the most degree of fudgement.

() Business combinations
i of business. o requires the excess of the purchase price of acquisitions over the net book vatue of assets acquired to be allocated to the assets and labilities of

the ecquired entity. The Group makes judgaments and estimates in relation to the fair value of the prica. if any portion is positive if is recognised as
goodwill and if negativa, it is recogrisad in the income statement. .
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2. Revenus and operating profit
For the year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Revenue - products 4,280.7 4,1927
Direct cost (32.7) __{3,148.1)
Jrading prof 13,0570 1,044.6
Oistribution and sefling costs (797.4) ___(780.1)
Gross profit 2596 2645
Administrative expenses (167.8) (165.3)
Exceptiona) items (soe below) (@2.8) - (32.3)
Amortisation of intangible assets {19.1) (23.7)
Total administrative expenses _zra.n) (2213)
Grow operating (oss)/ prof_ (20:) 92
The Group operating profit is all derived from continuing aperations.
The Group's revenue pri prises of sales to within the United ing the Republic of trefand) ing to £2,420.5m (2018: £2,367.4m), within Continental Europe (as Brakes Continenta)

Europe Division - "BCED") amounting to £1,283.2 m (2018: £1,273.9m) and Sweden amounting to £567.0m (2018: £551.4m). The Revenue by product iine is as foflows:

For the year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Healthcare and Hospitality 1410 13.1
Dairy Products 4503 4437
Meats 5720 §725
Seafood 380.3 354.0
Poultry 1454 1434
Frozen 991.0 1,248
Canned and Dry 7473 7644
Paper and Disposables 107 429
Chemical and Janitoria 27 36.7
Supply and Equipment 984 354
Produce 418.0 416.1
Dispenser Beverage 3107 526
Alcohol 9.0 -
Intercompany sales to other Sysco Companies 02 -
Other ncome 236 23.0
Total 4,280.7 4,192.7
For the year For the year
ended 30 Juna ended 30 June
" 2019 2018
Prafil on ordinary activities before taxation & arrived at after charging: £m £m
Employment cosls (note 24) 5781 5432
Inventories
-costof L ised as an exp in drect cost) 32160 3,139
- write downs and fosses incurred in the year / period 77 86
Amortisation of intangible assets 194 237
O iation of plant and i
~owned assets  * 40.7 404
- assets held under finance leases 154 16.9
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 110 04
Property, plant and equipment impaiment loss 14
Other operating lease rentals payahle
= plant'and machinery 202 209
- property 356 349
Repairs and mai on ty. plant and equy 414 407
Trade receivables impaw¥ment (note 11) 63 36
Exceptional items
- Business change costs : - 1.6
- ing of the UK lion network 70 58
~ Other UK (including ROY) restructuring costs and other costs 173 92
- Impairment of goodwill 140 78
- BCED restructuring costs 533 66
- Menigo Foodservice AB restructuring costs and othef costs 1.2 04
- Transaction fees - 1.1
Total xoeptional tems 28 23
aof the UK jon network
The Group & in the process of g a large scale gh ganisati mﬂafeanOlZandemededmeondudenmo The involves a i e oﬂhe i netwoﬂland
ing of the lion Sy s’ infs other smaller projects. The Group has incurred si costs on dedi teams to manage the p impl and dual
running costs incurred during the of ing from closing sites to new sites and % provision for onerous and other liabdities. These costs wil cease to be incurred upon the conclusion of
the programme.

Other UK (including ROY restructuring and other costs
Other UK (inctuding ROI) restructuring costs of £17.3m (2018: £9.2m) primarily refate to the dosure of a site in Dublin and the integration of UK businesses.
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2R and profit

Impairment of goodwill
During the year an impairment review of M&J Umited, a

which Is a cash generating unit within the UK ified that an

during the year. The i i loss arose fing & o in

BCED restructuring costs

future cash flows determined in carrying out the impairment review.

B8CED incurred restructuring costs in refation to the operational merge of Davigel.

Memgoﬁ)odsewww Iesﬂlmmm

toss of £14.0m (2018: £7.8m) had arisen

Menigo F ABg@ g costs in retation to rotes px from the buss during the year and other Sysco refated project costs.
Transaction fees
Tmmimedmwgmzoiayearmm1maranraspeadwmamlegallmmedbymmmwmmemmfsmmdemmmemmEKOFagelfﬂ
och mittemedlan ABEko Fisk AB.
Auditors
During the year the Group ing its from the Group's auditors and its associates at the following costs:
Fees payabie to the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent company amounted to £0.1m (2018: £0.1m). Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services are detaded as follows:
N For the year For the year
ended 30 Juno ended 30 June
2019 2018
Other services: £m £m
The audit of the C parent and idiary - [13.) 1.0
Other non-audit services (5] 02
0.9 12
3. Finance costs - net
. Forthe year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Finance costs:
Other loans and charges {2.1) (12}
Loans from retated undertakings - {0.3)
Loans from parent undertakings 9.1) -
Finance leases (X4} (4.0)
Net interest on net defined benefit fabiy (note 17) 2.7 2.7)
Total finance costs (17.6) {82)
Finance income:
Interest income on short term deposis 03 04
Other interest income 01 02
Loans to parent undertakings 25 37
Total finance income 129 43
Finance costs - net (4.7) 39)
4. Income tax charge
For the year For the year
ended 30 Juno ended 30 June
Taxation is based on the profit for the year / period and comprises: 2019 2018
£m £m
Current tax
- current year / pesiod group refief 46 51
- adjustments in respect of previous periods (0.3) 06
- overseas taxation 52 84
Defwedn:anm
ion and reversat of temporary differenices 25 16
-adlustmermnweddmmnemds - 0.1
- overseas deferred taxation @n (38)
tncoms tax charge 43 120
A reconcitiation of the tax charge for the year P to the effecti rate of taxis below:
For tho year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
{Loss) / Profit on ordinary activities before tax {248) 393
At 19.00% (2018: 19.00%) “n 75

Effects of:

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods
Adjustments to deferred tax charge in respect of previous periods
Expenses not deductbie for tax purposes and other adjustments

(03)

93

o6
0.1
38

Jaxchargo

43

120

Themamuxmmrmmmmmmemnemmemmxm1Auizo11.mmmm1smmmammmdmmmmmmtmm1Aui2020 This rate was
enadedvnmmﬁ\axmmzoﬁmcewedﬂoyalksunm155eptember2016.hhs&nd9elsaeedton11mmm"‘ the of the i
rate to 17%. As such, the main UK corporation tax rate will remain at 19% from 1 Aprl 2020. The impact of the of the rate ion would resutt in an increase to the net UK deferred tax asset of £3.8m.
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4, Income tax charge (continued)
in addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been ised in other ™ fncome:
For the year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Current tax
#ems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Overseas taxation {credit) f charge on retirement benefit obligation {0.5) 03
Deferred tax
ftems that will not be redassified to profit or loss:
Deferred tax (credit) / charge on retirement benefit obtigation achsarial gains and fosses - 19
ftems that may not be reciassified o profit or loss:
Daferred tax {credit) } charge on cash fiow hedges (see note 19) {0.1) 02
(0.6) 24
§. Profit of the Parent Company for the financial year
The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not pr an income The C 's prof2 for the financial year amounted to £22.5m (2018: £31.8m).
6. Goodwill
Group Company
£m £m
Cost and net book vatue
At1.July 2018 2013 232
Exchange adjustment 03 -
Impairment during the year (14.0) -
Disposal of subsidiary 0.1) -
Adjustment to Prior period acquisitions 0S5 -
isition of idiaries (nate 23) 03 e
A2 30 June 2019 188.3 282
Group Company
£m £m
Cost and net book vajue
At 1 uty 2017 195.7 282
Exchange adjustment 03 -
impaiment during the year (7.8)
isition of subsidiaries (note 23) 13.1 =
A1 30 Juno 2018 201.3 282
The goodwill has been allocated to cash-generating units ("CGLUS") and a summary of the camrying of goodwill by busi ( ing groups of CGUs) is as follows:
At 30 June AL 30 June
2019 2018
Em £m
UK and treland 1145 1265
BCED 4939 437
Sweden 209 311
Cost and net book value 1883 2013
{n the UK and Fetand the core foodsesvice CGUs Broatlline, Country Choice, M8 Seafood, Freshfayre, treland and Fresh Dect in BCED it principal; ises the trading france SAS
and in Sweden @t X ises the trading Menigo Foodservice AB.

Within the UK and treland the significant balances of goodwill are £59.8m (2018: £59.8m) for Broadiine (including Country Choice), £4.8m for MaJ {2018: £18.8m), £36.3m (2018: £36.3m) for Fresh Direct and £13.7m
{2018: £11.6m) for Kent Frozen Foods.

Impaimment reviews
An iew of impaj reviaws by is set out below. The recoverable amount of a CGU is ¥ luc-¥ b These ions use pro-tax cash fiow projections based on intemal
fe by ing the next three financial years. &mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmﬂm

The kay ions in the value-: were: -

- Revenue growth. Mmmmwmammmmwmmmmmmwmmmmmmmmmfuw
ic and market for other

- Operating cost growth. This assumption was based upon 'S jon for each sign product fine, having regard for and o i market
- Discount rates. The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections are based on an appropriate weighted average cost of capital for the Group and reflect spexcific risks relating to the relevant operating segments.

- Long term GDP growth rate. The long term growth rates applied to the cash flow projections are based on s relaﬁ;gtomere(mnmﬁgsegmm

The forecasts are based an the plan g the next three financia) years. &mmmmmmmmwswmw 3.0%) for all CGUs in the UK and breland, 3.0%
(2018: sms)meceoamas%(zma 35%)h&edenl\lnewihﬂlebngtennGDPgchmmam ding inflation, based on hi growth. The cash flows in the
lsngpmdswuﬂmtmo”(]?%(zm&w 1%) in the UK and treland, 104% (2018: 10.0%) in BCED and 11.6% (2018: 11.9%) in Sweden. mmmmm
mmamemfwM&JSeafnodmted(seebeM)mmisno thereisa of In excess of carrying values.

DwmgmeyearanmparmemremofM&JSeahodunied a subsidiary comparty which is a CGU within the Broadline business segment, identified that an impairment loss of £14.0m {2018: £7.8m) had arisen during the
year. The impairment loss n future cash flows determined in canying out the impaiment review. The recoverable amount for the CGU has been measured on a value-in-use
calcutation. Aw&mdwﬂmdlommusdmmavah:mmlmtbn.
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7. Intangiblo Assets

Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands reiationships software Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost
Al1 Juty 2018 285 59.0 1596 247.1
Exchange adjustment 0.1 - 10 1.1
Redassification . - N 13 13
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) (0.3) (0.5) - (0.8)
Additi - - 298 298
Disposals - - (13.7) {137
At 30 June 2019 283 58.5 1780 2648
Accumutated amortisation
At1 Juty 2018 59 25.1 98,5 1295
Exchange adjustment - - 03 0.3
Charge for the year 17 48 126 19.4
Disposals = - — 82 _(62)
At 30 Juno 2018 76 2.9 105.2 142.7
Net book vatue at 30 June 2019 0.7 285 T2.8 122.4
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands relationships software Totat
SGroup £m Ll £m £m
Cost
A1 July 2017 230 502 1352 2084
Exchange adjustment - 03) (0.5) (0.8)
Rediassification - - 25 25
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) 55 9.1 0.1 147
Additions - - 231 234
Disposals _ - : ©8) __(08)
At 30 June 2018 28.5 59.0 159.6 2471
Accumudated amortisation
At 1 July 2017 43 20.7 8.1 107.1
Exchange adjustment - - (0.4) (0.4)
Charga for the year 16 44 176 236
Disposats - - L) _©8)
At 30 June 2018 59 25.1 88.5 129.5
Net book value at 30 June 2018 2.6 33.9 61.1 117.6
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands refationships software Totad
Company £m £m fm £m
Cost
Al 1 hiy 2018 22 eA 880 us
Additions - - 50 50
Redlassification - - 0.3) 0.3)
Disposals - - (12.7) (121
At 30 June 2019 22 84 780 86.6
Accumutated amortisation
AL 1 July 2018 0.8 64 634 70.6
Charge for the year 0.4 - 71 72
R st - - 03) (0.3)
Disposats - : (118). 18).
At 30 June 2019 09 [:7.] 58.6 659
Net book vatue at 30 June 2019 13 ‘- 19.4 20.7
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands redationships software Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 hdy 2017 22 64 80.2 888
Additi - - 6.1 6.1
Disposats - - ©3) ©3)
At 30 June 2018 22 _64 86.0 946
Accumulated amortisation
AL July 2017 0.7 6.2 544 613
Charge for the period 0.1 02 9.3 96
Disposats - - ©3) ©3)
At 30 June 2018 08 64 634 706
Net book vaiue at 30 June 2018 14 - 256 24.0
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8 (a). Property, plant and equipment

Information
Land and Motor Ptant and technology
buidings vehides equipment hardware Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2018 2489 2082 184.0 556 696.7
Exchange adjustments 23 0.8 1.0 0.1 42
Redlassification 06 0.7 02 (2.8) {1.3)
Acguisition of subsidiaries (note 23) - - 0.1 - 0.1
Additions 284 349 158 82 873
Disposals (32) (28.8) (14.4) (18.5) (64.9)
At 30 June 2019 277.0 2158 186.7 428 7221
Accumutated depreciation
At 1 July 2018 870 893 1109 385 325.7
Exchange adjustment 07 03 05 0.1 16
Charge for the year 97 269 149 46 56.1
Disposats (1) _(15) (139) (16.0) _(545)
At 30 Juno 2019 943 950 1124 272 3289
Net book value at 30 June 2019 182.7 1208 743 154 393.2
formation
Land and Motor Plant and technology
buitdings vehictes equipment hardware Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1July 2017 2396 2054 1742 528 6720
Exchange adjustments 08 - 02) (0.1) 05
Redlassification 05 - {0.1) (2.9) 25)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (nate 23) 57 1.9 10 02 88
Additions 34 256 128 69 48.7
Disposals (.1 (24.7) (3.1 {1.3) (30.8)
At 30 June 2018 248.9 208.2 184.0 55.8 696.7
Accumulated depreciation
At 1.ty 2017 79 844 89.1 340 2954
Exchange adjustment 0.1 . (0.4) 0.1) 0.4)
Charga for the year 9.8 270 152 53 s7.3
. ~impairment loss 04 - 05 05 14
T 7 Disposals {1.2) (22.1) (35) (12) {28.0)
At 30 Juns 2018 8710 89.3 1109 385 325.7
Net book value at 30 June 2018 161.9 118.9 731 17.1 3710
Land and buildings comprise:
At 30 June At 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Cost
Freehold 2012 174.1
Long leasehold 14.0 144
Short leasehold 61.8 604
e 2489
Accumutated depreciation
Freehold 675 599
Long {easehold 52 53
——— e Shost leasehold 216 218
94.3 87.0
Assats held under finance leases have the following nst book amount:
A 30 Juno At 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Cost 1263 1235
Accumulated depreciation {68.3) (65.8)
Net book amount 58.0 57.7
Motor vehicles 564 554
Plant and equipment 16 23
Net book amount 58.0 51.7
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8 (a). Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Information
Land and Motor Ptant and technology
buldings vehicles equipment hardware Total
Company £m Em, £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Juy 2018 838 1272 85.0 381 3341
Additions 18 184 590 09 259
Dispossls 28 (1200 (114) (146) (408)
At 30 Jure 2019 828 133.6 786 244 3194
Accumutated depreciation
A1 July 2018 299 578 598 217 1752
Charge for the year 27 136 57 40 26.0
_Disposats 2.5 9.9) (113) (14.6) (38.3)
At 30 June 2019 30.1 61.5 542 174 162.9
Net book vatue at 30 June 2019 52.7 721 234 7.3 156.5
Information
Land and Moator Ptant and technology
buidings wvehicles equipment hardware Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2017 833 1346 820 370 3369
Additions 10 [:2:] 53 19 150
Disposals (05) (142) (23) (0.8) (17.8)
At 30 June 2018 838 1272 85.0 38.1 3341
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2017 277 563 56.6 249 165.5
Charge for the year 27 1338 54 38 255
Disposals (05 (12.3) (22) _(©8)  (158)
A1 30 June 2018 299 578 598 2.t 1752
Net book value at 30 June 2018 53.9 69.4 252 10.4 1589
Land and buidings comprise:
At 30 June At 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Cost
Freehold 184 184
Long leasehotd 138 1386
Short leasehold 50.6 518
828 838
Accurnutated depreciation
Freehold 85 82
Long leasehold 54 5.0
Short leasehold 162 16.7
30.1 299
Assets hetd under finance leases have the following net book amount:
At 30 June At 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Cost or vatuation 327 334
atabulinusepne — (17.0) {16.4)
Net book amount 15.0 17.0
Motor vehicles 135 149
Plant and equipment 15 21
Net book amount 15.0 17.0
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9. thvestments in subsidiaries

in ings (equity)
Atcost Provision Write down  Net book value
Company £m £m £m £m
A1 sy 2018 4533 " 62) (54.3) 3928
Capital Contribution during the period 21 - - 24
Purchase price adjustment for prior period soquistion - (01) - = IR
At 30 June 2019 4753 (62) (543) 4148
At cost Provision Wiito down  Net book value
Company £m £m £m £m
A1 duly 2017 a7 (62) (543) 3612
Additions 31.6 - - 31.6
At 30 June 2018 453.3 (6:2) {54.3) 392.8
nvestments are reconded at cost, which is the fair value of consideration paid.
The directors consider that the value of the & are by the assets and the expected future performance of the Group-
The subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2019 are listed as follows:
Country of Percentage
Name of Company __incorporation interest held Operating in:
Trading subsidiary undertakings:
Freshfayre Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Kent Frozen Foods Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Brakes Foodservice NI Limited Northern retand 100.00% United Kingdom
Menigo Foodservice AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
Other group undertekings:
Brake Bros Foodservice Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Cugcina French Holdings Limited England and Wates 100.00% United Kingdom -
Sysco France Holding SAS France 54.08% France
Victua SAS France 100.00% France
Cucina Fresh investments Limited England and Wales 49.00% United Kingdom
Stockfiag Limited Endland and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Buring the vear the i were either dk or ceased (o exist
F Limited (
Sysco Food Hokding S.A ),
The group undestakings at 30 June 2019 are (isted as follows:
Country of Percentage
Namo of Company _incorparation interestheld __ Operating in:
Trading group undertakings:
M3 Seafood Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Wild Harvest Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Pauteys Produce Limited Engtand and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Fresh Direct (UX} Limited Engtand and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Servicestvckama i Johanneshov AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
tsakssons Frukt & Gront AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
Fruktserice i Helsingborg AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
Clafra AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
EKO Fage! fisk och mitterneilan AB Sweden 80.00% Sweden
Sysco France SAS France 100.00% France
Les Atefiers du Gout. France 100.00% France
Davinel Espana SA. Soain 100.00% Spain
Daviged Belgiux SA Belgium 100.00% Belgium
Other group undertakings:
M&J Seafood Heldings Limited Endland and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Cucina Fresh Finance Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Fresh Direct Group Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Fresh Holdings Limited England and Wales 100.00% United King
Fresh Direct Limited = and Wales 100.00% Uiiitad Kingdom
———————Brake France Dévelobpemént France 100.00% France
SCI Bianchi Montegut France 100.00% France
SCf Le Dauphin France 100.00% France
SCI Do Boiseau Franca 160.00% France
SCi De Garcelles Franco 100.00% France
SC14D Lanjouan France 100.00% France
Other group undertakings (dormant):
Fresh Direct Local (Cambridgeshire) Limited Engiand and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissoved 8 Ocfober 2019
Fresh Direct Local {Scofland) Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissaived 8 Ocfober 2019
Fresh Direct Local (London) Limited England and Wales 100.00% Uned Kingdom  DBissoived 8 October 2019
Roots of Oxford Limited England and Wales 100.00% United King i 3 D 2019
During the vear the g Qroup were either dissoived or ceased to exist:
Sysco Food Services S.A rJ.

Cucina Investments (UK) 3 Limited
Cucina investments (UK) 2 Limited
Cucina Investments (UK) Limited
Cucina Hotdings (UK) Limited
Brake Bros Holding Hll Limited
Brake Bros Finance Limited
Brake Bros Acquisiion Limited
Brake Bros Receivables Limited
Brake Bros Holding I Limited
Woodward Foodservice Limited
Fruktserice i Maimd AB

Meniqo tnvest 1 AB
Menigo invest 2 AB

tn June 2019 the followina group undertaking was sold to another entity within the Svsco Groun
Brake Bros Foodservice treland Limited
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0. inventories
Group Company
At 30 June 2019 A1 30 June 2018 A230 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
£m £m £m £m
Raw materials and consumables 145 15.0 10 13
Finished goods and goods for resale 2249 2052 251 79.7
2394 2202 96.1 81.0
11. Trade and othes receivables
Group Company
AL 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018 At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
&m £m £m £m
Trade receivables 368.7 4220 161.0 1858
Less: provision for impainment of receivables _(119) (9.6) {3.6) {1.6)
Trade recaivables - net 3568 4124 1574 1942
Amounts owed by group undestakings - - 1223 597
Amounts owed by parent undertakings 1684 1196 1568 947
Amounts owed by retated undertakings 45 18 25 15
Loans awed by parent undestakings : 29638 2134 2168 2131
Loans owed by group undertakings - - 148.9 166.8
Other receivables 258 309 4.0 39
Prepayments 290 26.1 15.1 14.0
8013 803.9 8238 7479
Less non-curent portion (83) - - -
793.0 8039 8238 7479
The creation and release of a ision for the impah i have been & in direct p costs in the income statement.
mdwmmmmmmmsmmmdmmmcm'smmmwam Oue to this, believe there s no further credit risk provision required in
excess of the normal provision for doubtful h Therefare, to credit risk at the reporting date is the fai value of each class of receivable. The group and Company do not hald any collateral as
security.

The average credit period taken on sales of goods is 33 days (2018: 38 days). Interest at various rates may be charged on overdue trade receivables.

As of 30 June 2019, Group trade receivables of £310.4 m (2018: £353.0m) and Company trade receivables of £136.3m (2018: £155.9m) were fully performing.

As of 30 June 2019, Group trade receivables of £45.4m (2018: £58.6m) and Company trade receivables of £21.2m (2018: £38.3m) were past due but not impairod. Thess relate to a number of customers for whom there is

no recem history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:
Group
AL30 June 2019 A1 30 Juns 2018

Company
A130 June 2019 Al 30 June 2018

£m £m £m £m
Up to 3 months 388 51.8 214 52
3 to 6 months &7 6.8 - 3.1
455 58,6 211 383
As of 30 June 2019, trade receivables of £12.8m (2018: £10. cm) were lmpaued and provided for. The amount of the provision was £11.9m as of 30 June 2019 (2018: £9.6m}. The individually impaired receivables mainly
refate to which are in difficult twas that a portion of the 3 s to be The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:
Group Company
A2 30 Juno 2019 At 30 June 2018 A1 30 June 2019  A130 June 2018
£m £m £m £m
Up to 3 months 17 16 09 0.1
3to 6 months 23 12 14 05
Over 6 months 88 76 13 1.0
128 104 3.6 1.6
The bock value of trade and other receivables with a maturity of less than one year are assumed approximate to fair value.
The camrying of the trade and other h are i nthe
Group Company
A230 June 2019 At 30 June 2018 A230 June 2019 A1 30 June 2018
£m £ £m £m
Pounds . 5847 $§70.1 211 6554
Euros 1298 157.1 1027 925
Swedish Krona -888 767 - -
8013 803.9 823.8 7479
on the ion for impa of trade ivables are as follows:
Group Company

For the year - For the year
ended 30 lune  ended 30 June

For the year For the year
ended 30 June  ended 30 June

2019 2018 219 2018

£m £m £m £m

Al 1 duly 20187 1 Juty 2017 96 92 16 25
Exchange adjustment 0.1 - -

Provision for receivables impaimment 63 36 a6 02

Recelvables written off during the vear as uncollectibte [£S1) 32) 1.6 a.1)

At 30 June 2018/ 30 June 2018 1.9 9.6 36 1.6

Mmmo’mnmmmmunderemmesmﬁnmddmmn\ecmp‘samnerbasebemglamemunmlamd Due to this, management believe there is no fusther creda risk provision required in

excess of a nomal P the
as security.
The other classes within trade and other do not contain impaired assets

Page 30

to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each dass of receivable. The Group and Company does not hold any collateral



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
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12. Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
At 30 June 2018 At 30 June 2018 At 30 June 2018 At 30 June 2018
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 875 1173 19.1 525
Short term bank deposits 36 20 0.0 02
91.1 119.3 19.1 52.7

The effective interest rate on shost term deposits was 0.0% (2018: 0.0%) and these deposits have an average matwity of 1 day (2018: 1 day). The effective interest rate an company cash at bank and in hand is 0.0% (2018

0.0%).

13. Trade and other payables

Group Company

At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018 A230 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 5103 4957 3054 2948
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 1488 1592 1094 1434
Amounts owed to group undertakings 1:‘-‘ 4-2 13:,: 7:173

Amounts owed to related undertakings A
Other taxes and social securdly 7n9 373 60 6.1
Other payables 413 45 12 08
Accruals 1043 65.6 54.7 49.0
840.0 806.5 613.0 567.6

Amounts owed to group and parent undertakings are non-nterest bearing, unsecured and are repayable on demand.

The average credit perfod taken for trade purchases is 57 days (2018: 58 days). For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 60 days from the date of the invoice and thereafter interest may be

charged on the cutstanding balances at various interest

14, Curremt income tax assets / (lizbilittes)

Group
A2 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018

£m £fm
Corporation tax - UK - {0.3)
ion tax - overseas 22 22
22 1.9
A 30 June 2019 At 30 Juns 2018
£m £m
Caorporation tax assets 22 22
Corporation tax liabilites - 0.3)
22 19
15.F - gs
Group Company
At 30 June 2019 A1 30 June 2018 A1 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Current £m Em £m £m
Loans owed to parent undertakings 1228 1202 1228 1202
Loans owed to group undestakings - - 1321 1321
Finance teaseo obli 154 17.8 6.1 71
1382 138.0 261.0 2594
Group Company
A1 30 June 2019 A1 30 June 2018 At 30 June 2019 Al 30 June 2018
Non-current £m £m £m £m
Loans cwed to parent undestakings 128 1202 1228 .. 1202
Loans owed to group undertalings voe T R 1322 1321
" Finance lease obligations 04 60.5 149 175
1832 180.7 2699 2698
Less amounts falling due within one year (1382) (138.0) {261.0) {(259.4)
45.0 42.7 89 104
The carrying amournts of the Group and Company's inthe ing
Group Company
A230 June 2019 At 30 June 2018 A2 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
£m £m £m £m
Pounds Sterfing 232 261 1554 157.9
Euros 1578 152.6 1145 119
Swedish Krona 22 20 - -
1832 180.7 2699 2698
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15.

The maturity of borrowings is set out in note 16 (a). The exposure of the Group and the C to interest rate is as follows:
Group Company
At 30 Juno 2019 At 30 June 2018 A230 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
£m £m £m £m
Bomowings at floating interest rates 1228 1202 2550 2523
Fixed rate bormowings maturing:
~ within one year 154 178 6.1 74
~one to five years 379 358 a8 104
covesfvoyears 74 68 - -
1832 180.7 269.9 269.8
The effective interest cates at date of the statement of financial posftion were as follows:
Group Company
At 30 June 2019 Al 30 June 2018 At 30 Junp 2019 At 30 June 2018
Finance lease obligations 63% 6.5% 75% 75%
Loans owed lo parent undertakings 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%
Loans awed to group undertakings - - 6.0% 6.0%

16. Financial instruments

16(a)F h
Disdosures in respect of ﬂteerpsﬁlavmlr&samsetombelcw Amdm“wmhmmmm(mm15wm)mm«umashmdwmmmse«m
in note 16(b), 16(c) and 16{(d).

Financiat risk management
Financiat risk factors

The Group has operations in the UtheRepuhlnoﬂreiandamCOMnemalEmeMwmmeMwnmamdwrdsnmmdwemeeﬁmofmamesndebtmaﬂret
pmbewwwezﬂwmmummmmmnypmmlmmmmmm m&mhasnplacears:mamgemunpmgmmmamatseeksmlmimemeﬁadsmmfnanaal

performance of the Group by using foreign y debt to hedge n iaries, using forward g yp! and fuel ity swaps to hedge against the risk of the
change in the price of diesel.
The Board of Directors of Brake Bros Limited have the responsibility for satling the risk policies, in plk with Sysco C: i policies, appiied by the Brake Bros Limited group of

companies. The policies are implementad by the central group treasury departmant that receives regutar reports from meopemmsmpamasmmable prompt identification of financiaf risks so that the appropriate actions
may be taken.

(7) Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group is exp to foreign risks pri with respect to the Euro and ish Krona o the Swedish Krona is not considered material TneGmupmmmmmmfuuy

operations, whose net assets are d to foreign Y ion risk. Currency afising from the net assets of the Group's foreign ions is ly through L in the

Euro.

Ththum'sooemﬁmsnheUKandSwedenhave Y in ies other than their functional currency, such as the Euro, Poranlo!yamDaanmTr\semymmsesmm

tofnre-gn oieaa:enmyandmeseuumnces.TheGmmermmfmm y forward swap o sefl the entity’s and buy
the i Y P , which operate as cash flow hedges of the Group’s fareign Y

{G) Interest rate risk

‘rneG:wpnasbommusammgmtsammmneamglabmmWWpsmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmuw
to cash flow interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is not considered material for the Group.

(@) Credit risk .
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivatents, as well as credit to and ctic Far
banks, independently rated parties within the band ‘A’ rating are used for the main Group banking requin and possibie for idiary day to day i risk contiot assesses

the credit quatity of the customer, taking into account fts financial position, past experience and other factors, Nmum'kkhnsmsetbmdwhmmlmmm ThaGtwahastnplemmtadpo!bhsmal
require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales commence.

Tmtauebelwﬂmsmeaednmandmdmmmmnkmmmﬂmmmdahdmmandwmm A full anatysis of cash at bank and short term deposits is included in note 16{(d) to the
financia) statements.

At 30 June 2079 At 30 June 2018

Group Bajance Batance

Rating_ £m . _ Ratng £m
Bank A A 34 A 24
Bank B A 227 A 526
Bank C An 0.1 AA- 03
Bank D A+ 209 A 202
BankE A 38 A 98
Bank F A s A+ 138
Bank G An 118 AA- 10.7
Bank H 8B8+ 30 888 37
Bank | 8BB 22 BBB- 1.0
Bank K 8BB+ 0.1 BBB+ 0.1
Bank N BBB+ 03 BBB+ 13
Bank O 888 14 BBB 13
Bank P A - A 04
Bank Q AA- - AA- 1.7

91.1 1193
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16.F

16 (a) -

£330 June 2019 A1 30 June 2018
Company Batance
Lounterparty — Rating £m —Rating £m
Bank A A 1.1 A -
Bank B A 19 A 48.1
Bank F Av 68 A 65
Bank K 888+ 0.1 A 0.1

19.1 52.7

Managernent does not expect any tossas from by thase
M dqurk risk - o "
The Group's funding is derived from bomowings and amounts funded from parent and group undertakings that are designed to ensure the group has funds for and planned axpansions. The

Group also has access to intercompany funding from parent entiies, whom have access to an external Revolving Credit Faciity of 3US250 m amongst other faclities. The Group also participates in a cash pooling
arrangement with other Sysco Group entities providing additional seurces of local liquidity as and when required.

(v} Commodity price risk .

The Group is exposed to price risk pris with respect to diesel purchases. The Group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to imit the adverse effects on the financial pesformance of the
Group by using diesel fuef commodity swaps to hedge against futire price changes. During the period the Group entered into a number of fuel commodily swaps to hedge against the risk of the change in the price of diesed
on anticipated future purchases (see note 16(b) for further details).

Maturity of financial liabilities
The table betow anatyses the Group and Company's financial kabiities into retevant maturity pd based on the ing period at the date of the statement of financial position to the contract maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between one Between two Over five
oneyear andtwoyears and five ysars years
Group £m £m £ on
ngs - i interest 170 148 18 82
Trade and other payables exctuding statutory tiabiities 818.1 - - -
As at 30 June 2019 835.1 148 278 82
tessthan Between one Between two Over five
one year and two years and five years years
_Group £m £m £m £m
ings - & interest 213 162 252 70
Trade and other payables excluding statutory tiabiities 7692 - - -
As at 30 June 2018 7303 162 252 70
Less than Betweenone  Botwoen two Over five
oneycar andtwoyears and fivo years years
Company £m £m €m £m
g8 interest 66 an 54 -
Trade and other exchds liabities 606.9 - - -
As at 30 June 2019 6135 4.0 54 -
Less than Between one Between two Over five
one year and two years and five years years
Company £m £m £m £m
gs nterest 82 56 s7 B
Trade and aother payables exctuding statutory liabiities 561.5 - -
As at 30 June 2018 569.7 56 5.7 -
Capital risk management
The Group's obj when ging capital are to the Group's abiity to continue as a going concem in order to provide retums for shareholders and to maintain an eptimal capital struchure to reduce the cost of

capital. Th&ﬁeobyedhesatemmagadaﬁhematewemmlevel Cucina Lux bvestments Limited, rather than at a lower Group level.

The overall debt and equily structure of the Company is under the contro! of the ultimate parent company, Sysco Corporation. There are no external capita) requirements an the Company. Further details of the share
capitat of the Company can be found in note 20 of the financial statements.

16 (b) Financial instruments - by category

The accounting policies for financial nstruments have been appiied to the line iterms below:

At 30 Juno 2019 At 30 June 2018

Loans and Loans and

recelvables receivables

Group £m £m
Assets as per statement of finandiat position

Trade and other receivables 7723 7778

Cash and cash equivatents N1 1183

8834 897.1
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16. Fit i d)
16 (d) F - by category (
At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Uabilitles Liabities
at fair vatue at fair value
throughthe  Other financial throughthe  Other fnancial
profit and loss liabilities Total profit and loss liabiities Total
Group _ £m £m £m £m £m £m
Uabilities as per of "
Financiat abities - borrowings - 1832 1832 - 180.7 180.7
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - -
Trade and other payables exctuding statutory tizbilties - 818.1 8181 - 769.2 769.2
0.0 1,001.3 1,001.3 0.0 949.9 949.9
At 30 June 2019 A1 30 June 2018
Loans and Loans and
recetvables receivables
Company_ £m £m
Assats as per staternent of financint position
Trade and other receivables 808.7 7339
Cash and cash equivalents 19.1 527
8278 786.6
At 30 June 2019 Al 30 June 2018
Uabilities Liabities
at fatr vatus at fair vatup
throughthe Other financial through the  Other financial
profit and loss liabilies Total profit and loss Gabiies Total
Lompany £€m £m £m £m £m £m
- 2699 2699 - 2698 2698
- - 0.0 - - -
- 6069 606.9 - 561.5 5615
0.0 876.8 §76.8 0.0 831.3 831.3
18 (c). F -
Fair value estimation
The table betow financiat caimied at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)
- Inputs other than quoted prices indluded within level 1 that are observabls for the asset or liablity, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, denveufmmpnm)(levdZ)
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobsesvable inputs) (leve! 3).
The following table the Group and C: 's assets and fiabilities that are at tar vatue at 30 June 2019:
Lovel1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Group £m £m om £m
Assets
Forward foreign currency contracts 0.1 - 0.1
Cash flow hedges 02 - 0.2
- 0.3 - 0.3
Company _
Assets
Cash flow hedges - - .
The ing table pr the Group and C assels and [abifities that are measured at fair vatue at 30 June 2018:
Level 1 Level2 Leveld Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Assets
Forward foreign cutrency contracts - 05 - 05
Cash flow hedges - 1.0 - 1.0
- 15 - 15
Lompany
Assets
Cash fow hedges - 09 - [oX:]

0.9
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16. Financial instruments (continued)

16 {(c). Financial -

The Group and Company does not have any financial instruments that are traded in active markets.

For all other financial instruments fair value s ined by using x i ' i X mmmn:mmmmwmmuwmem parison to simiar & for
which market observable prices exist, and modets. If afl sk inputs required to fair vatue an i d in level 2. if one or more of the significant inputs s not based
©on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Carrying values of fin

Assets Labilitles Assets

A230 June 2019 A130 June 2018
Group £m £m
Forward foreign currency contracts 01 - 05 -
Cash flow hedges 02 - 1.0 -
Total curvent portion 0.3 - 15 -

i

At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Company £m £m £m
Cash flow hedges - - 0.9 -
‘I’dzleummmﬂ - - 09 -
Cash flow hedges

During the year the Group entered into a number of fuel commodity swaps to hedge against the risk of the change in the price of dieset on anticipated future purchases. The swaps afl have maturity dates in the next twetve
months and they have all been designated as cash flow hedges. As at 30 June 2019 the aggregate amount of gains under these swaps deferred in the cash flow hedging reserve, relating to exposure on these anticipated
future transactions is £0.4m (2018: £1.0). it is highly probable that the purchases will take place during the next tweive months, at which time the amount deferred in equity will be reclassified to profit or loss.

Falr vatues of non-dertvative financia) assets and Babilities

future cash flows et prevaiing interest rates and by applying year end exchange

Where market values are not available, tair vatues of financial assets and financiat liabiities have been
rates. The book value of short term borrowings is approximate to fair vaius.

Set out below are numerical disclosures in respect of the Group's financial instruments.

At 30 June 2019 A130 June 2018

. Book vatue Falr value Book value Fair value
Group £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments heid or issued to finance the Group's operations:
Short term financial liabilites and current portion of tlong term borrowings (1382) (1382) (138.0) (138.0)
Other tang term borrowings. (45.0) {a5.0) w2n {42.7)
Trade and other payables (840.0) (840.0) (806.5) (806.5)
Trade and other receivables 7723 7723 7778 777.8
Cash and cash equivalents 9.1 9.1 1193 1193
Retirement benefit obligations {111.9) {111.9) {108.7) (108.7)

The book values of short-term bankdepos&s.!oansandoﬂ\ubnmwmwﬂhamanmfydlesslhanoneyaarmeam:medmammmaﬁemmaﬂavvames. In the case of bank loans and other

due in mose

than one year the fair value of financiat s by di g the future u;snﬁmmmemmammammtmmmmmmmemmmaarmm
instruments.
The book values of trade and other receivables, trade and other cash and cash equr and benefit are to to their fair vatues.
Other fair values shown above have been estimated using valuation method teved 3 by d cash flows at interest rates.
At 30 June 2019 AL 30 June 2018

Book value Falr vatue Book value Fair value
Company £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments hetd or issued to finance the Group's operations: ~
Short term financial liabiities and cuent portion of long term borrowings (261.0) (261.0) {2594) (259.4)
Other long term bormowings (8.9) 89) (104) (104)
Trade and other payables (613.0) (613.0) (567.6) (567.6)
Trade and other receivables 8087 8087 7339 ™9
Cash and cash equivalents 19.1 19.1 527 527
Retirement benefit obligations {594) {594) (59.9) (59.9)
‘Borrowing facilities
The Group headed by Brake Bros Limited has no it ing faciites at 30 June 2019 (2018: £nil )

The minimum lease payments under finance | s fall due as follows:

Group .
At 30 June 2019 A130 June 2018

Company
At 30 Juno 2019 A1 30 June 2018

£m £m £m £m
Not later than one year 17.0 208 65 8.0
Later than one year bul not more than five 426 406 94 10
More than fwe years 82 7.2 - -
67.8 68.6 159 19.0
Future finance charges on finance leases (14) _{8.1) {1.0) (1.5)
604 60.5 14.9 17.5

Present valus of finance lease liabilities

Page 35




Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

16.F

16 {d). Credit quality of financia) assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be by to our Group risk profite indication based upon & i ided by our extemal credit agencies:
Group Company N
At 30 June 2019 At 30 Juns 2018 At 30 June 2019 Al 30 June 2018
£m £m £m £m
Trade recelvables .
Low risk 2423 278.0 1210 1254
Medium risk 345 513 60 240
High risk 33.6 257 93 65
Tota) trade receivables 3104 353.0 136.3 155.9
These categories of risk reflect the refative credit risk 0 our trade
Group Company
At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018 At 30 June 2019 Al 30 June 2018
£m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and short tesm deposits (see note below) .
AA- "7 227 - -

A+ 424 138 68 65
A 299 854 122 46.1
888+ as 14 ot 0.1
B8B 36 50 - -
8BB- ' - 10 - -

91.1 119.3 191 52.7

17. Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a number of pension schemes for its UK employees; the assets of all schemes being hetd in separate trustee administered funds. The pension schy by the C In addition, in
BCED and Sweden the Group is tiable for certain post employment benefits which meet the criteria of a defined benefit plan and these obligations are of an unfunded nature. TheUernsnnwlernaareupemeyme
subsidiary company Brake Bros Limited and are as follows:

(i) The Brakes Final Salary Pension Scheme was closed to existing employees at 31 December 2003. No further benefits are ing to 1o this date. The scheme is a funded defined benefit pension
plan.
The scheme is administered by a separate board of trustees which is legally separate from Brake Bros Limited. The trustees are ives of bath the and the and an i
trustee. The trustees are required by law to act in the interest of all relavant and are forthe @ mmmmMMpmmmmmdemm
Under the scheme, members are entiled to defined annual i on retis at normal retw age - age 63 or age 65). Benefils are also payabdle on death and following other events such as earty
retirernent.
Brakes Final Salary Pension Sch v benefit obligations up to a 0 amount of £20.0m (2018: £20.0m) are secured by way of a charge over certain property, plant and equipment of the Group.
Further details on the profie of the scheme, s funding » and risks i with the scheme are explained later in this note.
(')msrakesemrpw%mPlanwasopamﬂmlAprizoﬂandlsaqmmmmﬂacamsdunemm&msusngmmeetme istath ks into
the state pension scheme and for auto- J the ion rates are 5% of salary for and 3% for andfnrebctmmembershaxeanmlnnmmaﬁ%ofpemle
satary for members and from 4% for with higher ions for Funds are invested with Legat & General investment Management.
(m)Tm&ammzymmPummaoMmmmzoﬁmdlmmanmmmmmmmwwm i ion rates for of the Brakes
Money Purchase Pension Plan are 3% of ' salary for and 4% for empl with higher
(iv) The Fresh Direct Group Personal Pension Plans were openad en 1 January 2014 are qualifying workptace pension schemes that the Group is using to meet the i f istath i bers af
the scheme were transferred to The Brakes Group Personal Pension Plan,
tn Sweden, the idiary Menigo Fe ice AB, provk es with defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes. The majorily of the L with the TP
plan pension for ia) salaried The Group’s m&mmmmwmmmﬂmmwwmmm Foreefmmlmedemplwea the TP
pensions are secured through the insurance company Alecta. The pian is reported as a defined ion plan with the premé paid ing the pension cost.
in BCED, for the subsidiary companies Sysco France SAS, afl k benefits Départ en Retraite "IDR™). Thess are unfunded that s
beneﬁshasedonwandsala:ymdﬂmwlmdwwfnsdeoenmmmnpwmnwm
The ised in the of i for defined benefit plans are set out below:
Group Company
A130 e 2019 At 30 June 2018 A130 June 2049 At 30 June 2018
£m £m £m £m
Prasent value ot funded obligations 2682 ‘2551 2682 255.1
Present vatue of unfunded obfigations 525 488 - -
Fair value of plan assets {208.8) {195.2) {208.8) (195.2)
Net pension tiabiity recognised n the statement of financial position 111.9 108.7 594 59.9
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The in the benefit during the year Is as follows:
Group Tota) Group Company
For the year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
UK BCED Sweden 2019 2018
Retirement benefit obligations £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 July 2018 599 21 267 1087 599
Exchange adjustment - 0.6) [{:3}] 0.0 -

interest expense 1.7 04 0.6 27 1.7
Administrative expenses - - - - -
Cuvent service {income) / cost - 14 03 22 -
Prior service cost 24 - 24 24
Contributions paid in the year (45) (08) {0.6) (59) 4.5)
Remeasurements ised in other comy iva ncome. {0y 14 12 25 %)
At 30 Juno 2019 594 239 28.6 1119 59.4
The in the reth benefit itn the prior period was as follows:

Group Total Group Comgparty

For the year For the year

ended 30 June ended 30 une

UK BCED Sweden 2018 2018

Retirement benefit obligations £m £m £m £m £m
ALY Judy 2017 701 259 266 1226 70.1
Exchange adjustment - 02 (1.9 (.7) -
Interest expense 1.7 04 0.6 27 1.7
Adminisirative expenses 02 - - 0.2 02
Current service (income) cost - .7 0.9 0.2 -
Contributions paid in the year (4.3) .1 (0.6) (6.0) (4.3)
Remeasurements ised i other comy income. {78) (26) 1.4 {93) (7.8)
At 30 June 2018 59.9 22.1 28.7 108.7 59.9
The in the inco: and other income for defined benefit ptans are set out below:

Group Total Group Company

For the year For the year

ended 30 June ended 30 June

uK 8CED Sweden 09 2019

Retirement benefit obligations £m £m £m £m £m
Operating cost
Service costs:

- Curment service (income) / cost - 14 [13:] 22 -

- Administrative expenses - - - - -
Total operating costs / (ncome) - 14 08 22 -
Financing cost
Interest expense 1.7 04 0.6 27 17
Total income statement charge / (credit) 1.7 1.8 14 49 1.7
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
- (gains) { tosses from ch n 3 i (16.0) 14 12 (13.4) (16.0)
- gains from changes in financial assumptions 288 - - 288 288
- experience losses 05 - - 05 0s
- tosses on retum on scheme assets __{134) - - {134) {134)
Total amount nised in other Income {©0.1) 14 1.2 2.5 (0.1)

Group Group Company
For the year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
UK BCED Sweden —-2018 2018
Retirement benefit obtigations £t £m £m £m £m
Operating cost
Service costs;

- Current service cost - 0.7 09 02 -

- Administrative expensas 02 - - 02 0.2
Total operating costs 02 ©.7) 09 04 02
Financing cost
interest expense 17 04 06 27 17
Total income statement charge 1.9 03) 1.5 3.1 1.9

d in other income

- (pains} / losses from in (3) 28) 11 (28) (1.3}
-losses from changes in financial assumptions {152} - - (152) {152)
- experience gains 23 - - 23 23
- gains on retum on scheme assets 64 - - 64 6.4
Tota) amount recognised in other comprehensive income 78) 25) 1.1 9.3) o))
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1. benefit obligati '
The amounts recognised in the incoms for defined plans are set out below:
Group Company
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended 30 June  ended 30 June ended 30 June  ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 . 2018
£m £m £m £m
Defined contribution schermes . 167 98 131 15
Reporting at 30 June 2019
The independent actuary calcutates the defined beneft obfigation mnuanybyadnsmgmmmdmemmmnmvanmmsmzmsmmmmmmmmmm taking account of
axperience over the period since 5 Aprd 2016, in market in the finandial and demographic assumptions, The presant value of the defined benefit obligafion is measured using the
projectad uni? credit method. The principal financial and T - usedto % igs for the periods ended 30 June 2019 are set cut below.
At 30 June 2018 At 30 June 2018
Financial assumptions % %
UK assumptions:
Rate of i mn jons n and 31 30
Discount rate 23 29
Inflation assumption RP1 32 31
Inflation assumption CP1 20 18
BCED assumptions:
Oiscount rate 13 20
Salary increase 24 24
tndtation 19 19
Sweden assumptions:
Discount rate 20
Salary increase 23 23
tnflation 138 19
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate UK assumptions:
The mortaiity assumptions are based on the recent actual mortafi L of Scheme i and a - ic anatysis of the Scheme membership, and aftow for future impr n
rates. MWMewwmmdammmmﬁwmmdmmmdwpus&msasfollows
A 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Mate 24 215
Female 234 236
The average ife i yearsofa i retiving at age 65, 20 years after the date of the statement of financial posiion is as follows:
At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Male 24 26
Female 246 248
Sensitivity to key assumptions
The key assumgtions used far IAS 19 are: discount rate, inflation and If different ions wera used in the UK, this could have a material effect on tha resulls di The vity of the reta benefit
obligation to these assumptions is as follows.
- Following a 0.2% pa decrease in the discount rate the deficlt would increase by £9.4m from £111.8m to £121.2m,
- Foilowing a 1 year in infife the deficlt woutd by £11.3m from £111.8m to £123.1m.
ﬂwsezlsmvi!yrlfmna‘lnnmahovammmmmmmammnaﬁmmmdmmmmW ion 1o the date of of financiat position . This is the same
approach as has been adopted in previous periods.
Anatysis of movement in present vatue of retirement benefit obligations during the year is as follows:
Group Total Group Company
Sweden For the year For the year
UK {funded .BCED unf ended 30 June ended 30 June
2018 2019
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Juty 2018 255.1 21 26.7 3039 2551
Exchange adjustmen (0.6) (0.1) o.n -
Interest expense N 1.2 04 0.6 82 12
Remeasurements:
- {gains) / losses from in T i {16.0) 14 12 (134) (16.0)
- gains from changes in financial assumptions 288 - - 288 288
- experience losses s - - 0.5 0S5
Contritutions paid by employer (0.8) {0.6) (14) -
Current service cost - 14 08 T 22 -
Prior service cost 24 - - 24 24
Benefils paid {98) - - {98) {9.8)
At 30 June 2019 2682 23.9 28.6 320.7 2682
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Analysis of movement in present valuo of retirement benefit ocbligations during the prior period is as follows:
Group Total Group Company
Sweden For the year For the year
UK (funded BCED (unfunded (unfunded  ended 30 June ended 30 June
igati ik i 2018 2018
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 July 2017 27110 259 266 3235 210
Exchange adjustment - 02 (1.9) a7 -
interest expense 69 04 06 79 69
Remeasurements:
- (gains) / lossas from n (13) {26) 1.1 (?_8) (13)
-lossasﬁwndwgasnhamlasumpmns {15.2) - - {152) {152)
23 - - 23 23
Comrmavspad by employer - {1.1) (0.6) an -
Currenmt service cost - 0.7) 09 02 -
Benefis paid {8.6) - - (8.6} (8.6)
At 30 June 2018 255.1 22.1 26.7 303.9 255.1
Analysis of movement in fair valuo of scheme assets during the year Is as follows:
UK and Group Company
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended 30 June  ended 30 June ended 30 June  ended 30 Juna
2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m
Al 1 July 2018/ 1 Juty 2017 1952 2009 1952 2009

Interest income on scheme assets 55 52 55 52
Remeasurements: -

- gains / (losses) on retum on scheme asssts 134 6.9) 134 (6.4)
Administrative expenses - (0.2) - 02)
Contributions paid by employer 45 43 45 43
Benefits paid (8.8) (8.6) (9.8) (86)
At 30 June 2019/ 30 June 2018 208.8 185.2 208.8 1852
The Plan assets are svested & the following asset ciasses:

A 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Of which not Of which not
quoted in an quoted in an
active market active market
£m £m £m

Equities 404 151 286 104
Property 124 124 104 104
Macro crientated 164 - 28 02
Multi strategy 24 - 276 -
Credit / Corporate bonds 128 - 107 -
Govemment bonds 439 - 72 -
Derivatives {0.5) 26 134 134
Cash and cash equivalents 545 - 74.4 -
At 30 June 2019 / 30 June 2018 2083 30.1 195.1 344
Further details on the Brakes Final Satary Pension Scheme
Profile of the scheme
The defined benefit obligation includes benefits for deferred and cument pensioners. Broadly, about 63% of the liabilities are o d d X and 37% to current pensioners.

mmambmiﬂmwﬂ\eMMemﬁwmﬁmmmmm For the scheme as a whole, the duration is around 18 years reflecting the approximate spiit of the defined benefit obfigation
of 21 years) and current pensioners (duration of 12 years).

The table below Rlustrates the profile of projected future benefit payments from the scheme.

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension benefits

Less than Between one Between two Over
At 30 June 2019 one year and two years and five years five years
Pension benefits. 2% 2% 6% 90%
Al 30 June 2018
Pension benefits 2% 2% 5% 91%
Funding requirements

UK iegistation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently. Thelaﬁmmm\dumofmeUstunewasmnedwmyaquam‘edacmaryasmSAprﬂzomammadeﬁuldinzm From July 2017 the
Group is now paying deficit contributions of £4.2m per annum which, along with investment retumns from returm-seeking assets, is expectsd to make good this shortfall by 2028. The Group also pays contributions of £0.3m
per annum respect of the expenses of administering the scheme. A contribution of £4.5m is expected to be paid by the Group during the year ending 30 June 2020.

Risks associated with the schema
Asset volatility The liabiities are caladated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields: if assets undesperform this yield, this will create a deficit.
The scheme holds a significant proportion of growth assets (equities, high yield bonds, property and 0 which, though to
mm:nmmwn mwmmnmm-memm The allocation to growth assefs is monitored to ensure @ remains
. L
Changes in bond yields A decrease in corparate bond yields will increase the vatue placed on the scheme's liabdities for at sh this will be pariially

oﬁsetbya.nmnIneva!ueofmesdnnesmemsmtammhgmmwme’smemshawgysmmdgemmmwﬂsk
although & is currently only pastialty hedged, meaning that a decrease in interest rates wil increasa the deficit.

Inflation cisk A significant propartion of the scheme’s benefit obligations ase linked to inflation and higher inflation wil lead to higher labiities {although, in most
cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against extreme inflation), aithough this will be partially offset by an increase in
ma\aiusofuwsmemasinﬂatinnma‘ldmgMmmesmmmhmhmm&ﬁwﬁbmﬂywm

hedged, g that an In inflation will i the deficit.

Life expectancy mmdmwmesmmbpmmmmmdm S0 nlife will resuft in an inthe
[abities.

The Group and Trustees have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investment risk as and when r This includ: ion of growth assets to reduce volatily and an assetiability matching poticy which

aims to reduce the wolatiilly of the funding leve! of the pension plan by investing in assets such as swaps which perform in line with the [iabdities of the plan so as to protect against inflation being higher than expected or
market yietds being lower than expected.

QOn 26 October 2018 the High Court of Justice in the United Kingdom issued a niding requiring the equalisation of benefits payable in respect of Guaranteed Minimum Pension benefis for males. For both the Group and the
Companyheimpadofﬂ\lsndngwilbewmeasemdeﬁtedbemﬂouqamndnm%kesFMSahrmesmane Up to the date of these financial statements, it has not been possible to accurately quantify the
impact of this change. Cumrent estimates by UK professional advisory firms of the ial i inthe igation of an affected defined benefit pension plan are in the 0 to 3 percent range of the pension
abligations.
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17. benefit inuod)
Group actuartal losses of £2.5m (period ended 30 June 2018 : £9.3 gains) were recognised i the period and inthe d of X 1 income. The carmulative amount of actuarial
losses nthe of income s £84.4m (30 June 2018 £686.9m).
The actuat gain on plan assets was £18.9m (2018: £1.2m loss).
18. Provisions
Group Company
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended 30 June  ended 30 Juns ended 30 June  ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018
Property and cther provisions £m £m £m £m
ALY July 2018 1 1 July 2017 359 309 2Aa 215
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) - 0.7 - -
Dsposa!ofsmsnmy 2 - - -
on isition of (note 23) 11 26 - 12
Charged 1 (credited) to the income mem during the year {0.9) 40 (09 08
for prop , plant and fions during the year 14 - 14 -
Uﬂmd the (24) (1.5) - (1.1)
At 30 June 2019 / 30 June 2018 327 35.9 234 24
Non-current 298 3z 23 203
Current 29 42 1.1 21
’ 327 35.9 234 224
Property provisions at 30 June 2019 are for ictati igations relating to property held by the Group. F for idations pri y I to property to iis original condition at
the end of the lease term.
At 30 June 2019 there were provisions relating to onesous contracts amounting to £2.7m (2018: £3.3m) and al: for eam it to £2.4 m (2018: £2.6m) in respect of the acquisitions of

Eko Fisk and Kent Frozen Foods (refemred o in note 23 to the financial statements). Payment of this consideration is dependent upon certain treding performance targets being met.

19. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax assets and [iabiities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior year:

Property, plant
Retrement Capital and equipment
beneft allowances timing Customer lists fair value Other temporary

obligations Cash flow hedge difterences Tax losses and brands adjustments differences Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Juty 2017 242 - 271 45 (9.9) (0.98) {109) 31

adjustment (0.2) - (0.1) 0.1 03 - {0.1) -

Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 02) - (2.8) (03) 08 {25)
Redassifications (0.9) - (9.6) 24 - - 8.5 04
Tax charge on retirement benefit obligations taken directly to other
comprehensive income 19 - - - - - - (19)
Tax charge on cash flow hedges taken directly to other
comprehensive income - (0.2) - - - - - ©2)
Credited / (chared) to the income statement i the year 02 - (14) 1.0 1.1 0.1 1.1 21
Al'1 hidy 2018 214 ©.2) 158 80 (11.3) (R} (0.5) 320
Exchange adjustment 0.1 - (0.1) - - - 02 02
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 04 - (0.5) (0.1)
Tax charge on retirement benefa obligations taken direclly to other
comprehensive income 05 - - - - - 05
Tax charge on cash flow hedges taken directly to other
comprehensive income - 0.1 - - - - - 01
Credited / (charged) to the income statement in the year {1.8) - (1.3) (1.8) 24 - 74 4.9
At 30 June 2019 202 (0.1) 144 62 8.5) (1.1) 6.5 37.6

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settle the balances net. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the Group

{after offset) for financial reporting purpeses.

At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
£m

£m
Deferred tax assets 40.0 348
Deforred tax liabiites (24) (2.8)
37.6 32.0
The following are the major deferred tax assets and [iabiities by the C: and thereon during the cumrent and prior year.
Property, plant
Retirement Capital and equipment
benefit allowances timing Customer Iists fair alue Other temporary

obligations  Cash flow hedge differences Tax losses and brands adjustments differences Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m _Em £m £m
At 1 Judy 2017 122 0.1 270 35 (0.3) (0.8) 08 425
Tax charge on retrement benefit abligations taken directly to other
comprehensive income 14) - - - . - - - (1.4)
Tax charge on cash flow hedges taken directly to other
comprehensive income - {0.3) - - - - - 0.3)
Credited / {charged) to the income statement in the year (04) - (1.0} {06) 0.1 0.1 - {18)
A1 Juy 2018 104 02) 26.0 29 (0.2) 0. 08 390
Tax chargs on retirement benefit obligations taken directly to other
comprehensive income - - - - - - - -
Tax charge on cash flow hedges taken d¥ectly to ather
comprehensive income - 02 - - - - - 02
Credited / (charged) to the income statement in the year {0.1) - {32) (1.0} - - 0.1 (42)
At 30 June 2018 103 0.0 228 1.9 (0.2} { (4 1 0.9 35.0
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19. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)

Defered tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and on

giving rise to

tax assets, to the extent that & is conskiered probable, based on intema) forecasts, that these assets will

be recovered, There are unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised tax losses in the UK amounting to £33 (2018: £3.6m). There ks no exply date for these losses. The deferred tax charged to other

comprehensive income during the period amounted to £0.6m (2018: £2.1m credit).

20. Share capital
A130 June 2019 A 30 June 2018
Group and Company fm £m
Authorised
58,000,000 (2018: 58.000.000) ordinary shares of 10p 5.8 58
Ordinary shares
tssued and fully paid paid of 10p each £m £m
At 30 June 2019/ 30 June 2018 53,776,540 5.4 54
2%. Reserves
Other reserves:
Business
comb. under Other Capital Total other Retained
Hedging common control i o Total
Group - attributabie to owners of the parent Company fm £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 2udy 2018 15 {765) 203 4173 3626 338.1 700.7
i benefd - - - - - 25) 25)
Taxation on ret beneft - - - - . 05 05
Cash flow hedges - losses arksing in the year (12) - - - 12) - (12}
Taxation on cash flow hedges 0.1 - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Long term incentive plan charge - - - - - ©4) 04)
Currency transiation differences - - 35 - 35 - 35
Loss for the year - - - - - {29.2) {29.2)
At 30 June 2019 04 {16.5) 238 4173 365.0 308.5 6715
Other reserves:
Business
comb. under Other Capital Total other Retained
Hedging common controt reserves contribution reserves eamings Total
Group - aftributable to owners of the parent Company £m £m ‘_&m £m £m £m £m
AL 1 July 2017 (0.3) (78.5) 226 973 363.1 303.7 6668
i benefi - - - - - 93 93
Taxation on rets benefit - - - - - 22) 22)
Cash flow hedges - gains arising in the year 20 - - - 20 - 20
Taxation on cash flow hedges 02) - - - 02) . 02)
Currency transiation differences - - (23) - (2.3) - (2.3)
Profit for the year - - - - - 273 273
Al 30 June 2018 1.5 {76.5) 203 417.3 3626 338.1 700.7
hduﬂedhmhwammmmmmmd&z&n(2018:{19.3m)mﬂgamon0\efaimdmlbwmafﬂ.0m {2018: £1.0m). \
Other reserves:
Capital Totat other Retained
Hedging Other ; ings Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
Al 1 July 2018 08 (18.9) 4095 3914 178.1, 569.5
Profit for the year - - - - 25 2s
Long term incentive plan charge - - - - (0.7) [(X)]
Arising on Business Combinatk - - - . 1.7 17
Cash flow hedges - (fosses) arising in the year (10) - - 1.9 - (1.0)
Taxation on cash flow hedges 02 - - 02 - 02
C benefit obligat: - - - - 0.1 0.1
Taxation on retirement benefit obligation actuariat gain = = - - -
A% 30 Sune 2019 0.0 {18.9) 409.5 330.6 2017 5923
Othsr reserves:
Capital Totad other Retzined
Hedging Other i L Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
AL 1 July 2017 (02) (18.9) 4095 3904 139.9 530.3
Profit for the year - - - - Nns 318
Cash flow hedges - gains astsing in the year 13 - - 13 - 13
Taxation on cash flow hedges (03) - - (03) - (0.3)
i benefit 3 gain - - - - 78 78
Taxation on refirement benefit obligation actuarial gain - - - - {1.4) (14)
Al 30 June 2018 0.8 {18.9) 409.5 3914 178.1 569.5
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2.
{il)Kent Frozen Foods and Eko Fisk:

mmgmyeateuhdwmzowmmmmﬁnﬂ\eUKioo%ofmemxedshaxempMdKemmeFoodsunied Kent Frozen Foods &5 a

dservi o with a strong @
key accounts of Brakes UK and Fresh Direct Group. the group also acquired 80% of the ssued share capital of EKO Fage! fisk och mittemellan ABEXo Fisk AB

base, which the strong and regional
{"Eko Fisk"), a Swexdish foodservice business with wide expestise in the fish industry.
Provisional fair
vatues Adjustments Falr vatue
£m £m £m
identifiahie intangible assets 99 o.n 92
Property, plant and equipment ed 02 ot
tnventory 27 05 32
Trade and other receivables 6.0 11 71
Cash at bank 16 09 25
Financial Liabiities - borrowings (0.6) - 0.8)
Trade and other payables (8.0) 1.0) .0
Provisions .1 - {on
Current income tax liabiities (03) - {0.3)
Oeferved tax liabifities (14) 02) {1.6)
Total identifiable assets 200 08 208
Goodwill 154 05 159
Total consideration 354 13 36.7
. £m £m £m
Satished by:
Cash 342 02 344
Eam-out consideration 12 1.1 23
Total consideration transferved 354 13 36.7
For the year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
209 2018
£m £m
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration 08 342
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired 0N {1.8)
0.1 32.6
(i) Group total net cash outflow on acquisitions:
For the year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Net cash autflow arising on acquisitions:
Restaurangakademien AB 04 -
Kent Frozen Foods and Eko Fisk 02 326
Davigel - 89
0.3 415
28, y and di
Group Company
For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended 30 Juno  ended 30 June endad 30 June  ended 30 June
Average monfhly rurnber of people employed by the Group and Company during the year: 2019 2018 2019 2018
Number Number Number Number
Distrbution, manufacturing and sefling 12,841 12,693 5718 6,005
Administration 1,854 1,769 678 562
18,595 14,467 3% 6,567
Group Company
For the year For the year For the year For the year
endod 30 June  endad 30 Juns ended 30 June  ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m
The costs incurred in respect of these employees were:
Wages and sataries 457.0 438.1 202.7 1995
Social security costs 1022 987 192 192
Defined benefit pension costs 22 16 - -
Defined contribution pension costs (note 17) 16.7 98 131 75
5781 5482 2350 2262
Key management compensation
For the year For the year
ended 30 June  ended 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Sataries and short-term benefits 24 27
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.1
25 28
The key management figures given above include di The Group key o be those persons who have the ly and for directing and g the of the

Group.
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24, Emp! and

Directors’ emofuments

For the yoar For the year
ended 30 June  ended 30 June
2019 2018
Aggregate emoluments 2418 2,692
Company pension © money p 83 89
Retirement benefits are acaruing to 2 (2018: 2) directors under money pension only.
Emotuments paid to the highest paid director are as follows:
Aggregate emotuments ard benefits 1121 1,850
e -

Comparty pensk

to money

25. Equity settied share scheme

Sysco Corporation provide a share based to Brakes
options, L

stock units and

» share units (PSUs) under this 2013 Plan.

Vesting requirements for awards undes the 2013 Plan vary by individual grant and may include either time-based vesting or time-based vesting subject to

least ane year. The contractual life of all eptions granted under the 2043 Pian are and will be no greater than ten years.

The stock option awards are subject to graded vesting over a requisite sarvice period with

under the Sysco Long-tenm incentive Ptan (2013 Plan) and cerstain employees of Brakes Group have been awarded Sysco stock

onan

based on p

criterta for fiscal periods of at

basis over the requisie service period over the duration of the award.

During the year 40,896 {2018: 48,911) restricted stock units were granted to Brakes employees which will vest rateably over a three-year period. The weighted average grani-date fair value per restricted stock unit granted in
the period was US$64.71 (2018: US$55.61).

Ouring the year, 44.997 PSUs (2018: 48,542) were granted to Brakes employees, these wil convert into shares of Sysco common stock at the end of the performance period

based on financiaj

performance
consisting of Sysco's eaming pes share, compound annua) growth rate and adjusted return on invested capital. The weighted average grant-date fair vatue per PSU granted in the year was US$73.10 (2018: US$51.22).

The fair value of each option is estimated as of the date of grant using a black-Scholes

model. Expected dividend yield is estimated based on the historical pattem of dividends and the average stock price for

pricing
lheyaarpteeedinulhaupmngrwmExpewednlaﬂaysmSedmnsmrmlwla‘liiynl&sm&smek.WmmmwmmWsmwmmmﬂmwmmmwm

of the option is based on the US Treasury yield curve in effect gt the time of the grant. Sysco usas historical data to estimate option exercise and within the model.
The average above are noted below:
For the year For the year

ended 30 June ended 30 June
Group and company 2019 2018
Dividend yield 25% 26%
Expected volatidy 16.9% 175%
Risk-free interest rate 28% 2.0%
Exectedlte 7.0 yoars 7Oyears

The following share based payment amangements took place during the year ended 30 June 2019 and existed at the year end:

For tha yoar ended 30 June 2019
Weighted

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Weighted
Number of average Number of share average exercise
Group and Company share options _ exercise price options price
Outstanding at beginning of year 355,138 $51.88 354,286 $52.62
Granted during the year 200,561 $73.16 223497 35122
Exercised during the year (102,545) $52.05 (38,732} $5242
Forfelted during the year (41,053) $s2.11 (183,913) $52.31
Ou‘&and'ma!eﬂdoﬂhgga;‘ng 412,101 $60.52 355,138 $51.88
Vested or expected to vest as of 30 June 2018 / 30 June 2018 342,183 $62.25 308,148 $51.79
. Exercisable at the end of the period 60,230 $51.62 41,055 $52.64

The total share-based P L ded within in the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019 was £4.9m (2018: £1.5m), with a capitat within equity. An intercompany
hablmysmwgmedmmewmmfmmammnmmemswmmmndmsm(201B'EZIm)mrwedufmeabovasmme
26. Commitments
(a) Capital commitments -

Group N Company

At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018 A230 June 2019 At 30 June 2018

£m £m £m £m
Contracted for but not provided 84 . 53 84 46
Capital commilments in the Group amaunting to £5.4 m (2018: £2.2m) & in respect of motor vehicles and £3.0 m {2018: £3.1m) s in respect of plant and inery, T and softy
Capital in the C to £5.4 m (2018: £1.5m) is in respect of motor vehicles and £3.0 m (2018: £3.1m} is in respect of plant and inery, IT and softy
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26. Commitments {continuad}

{b) Operating lease commitments .
The total of future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellabie operating leases are as follows:

At 30 June 2019 A1 30 June 2018
Land and Land and
buiidings QOthver bulldings Other
Group_ fm fm fm £m
Within one year 334 83 332 6.1
Between two and five years 973 129 909 78
After five yoars 180.6 52 1741 04
3113 264 2982 143
At 30 June 2019 A1 30 June 2018
Land and Land and
buildings Other buiidings Other
Company £m £m £m £m
Within one year 145 07 145 0.7
Between two and five years 502 08 498 12
Afterfve years 1422 - 150.1 -
206.9 1.5 2144 19
The Company and the Group leases various propesties and plant and i under The leases have various terms and renewal rights. The Company and the Group has
also sub-et certain pr under and the total of future to be ived by the Group to £0.8m (2018: £1.5m) and by the Company
amoumsmeosm(zms £1.5m).
27. Related party transactions
Ouring the year the Company contimsed to provide and receive funding to and from other group companies, and has also into certain other ions with other ies in the Sysco C ion group. Detalls of these
transactions are as follows:
For the year For the year
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
£m £m
Loans owed by parent undertakings 2168 21341
Loans owed by subsidiary undertakings 1489 166.8
Loans owed to parent undertakings (122.8) (1202)
Loans ownsd to group undertakings (1322) (132.1)
Amounts owed by parem undertakings 158.8 9.7
Amourits owed by refated undertakings 25 15
Trade and other payables owed to parent undertakings (109.4) (1434)
Trade and other payables owed to group undenaklngs (133.8) (71.8)
Trade and other ‘ owed by i 123 59.7
Interest payabie to parent undertakings @=s) 74)
Debt issue costs payable to parent undertakings 13) 2)
Interest payable to subsidiary undertakings 79) (8.1)
Interest ' from idiary ing: 106 115
Interest A from parent i 1225 122
Sates to subsidiary undertakings 3683 437
SaiosmSyswCawamwmpwmgs 151 92
Y 832 972
MMM&L 44 5.1
None of the balances owed to or by parent xdiary ings or are sacured.
Key Gion &s dit in note 24, ret benefit obtigations are dk d innote 17.
28. parent npany and party
The immediate parent undertaking is Brake Bros Holding | Limited, a company incorparated in the United Kingdom,
The Company’s ultimate parent ing and ling party.is Sysco C ion, & i in the United States:
The parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group to these fi = is Sysco Corporation. Copies of Sysco Corporation’s group financial statements can be obtzined from 1390 Enclave
Parkway, Houston, Texas, United states.
29. Post balance shoet ovents
The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Group and Company's operations and trading is discussed in the Overview of the Busi and principal risks and infies section of the Strategic Report on page 2, and
other Future Oufiook section in the Directors Report on page 3. The basss of preparation section in Note 1 to the financial statements assesses the impact of the pandemic on the Going Concem assessment of the business.
As innote 1, have made a number of critical esth J and n ing these Ghenthefastmomgnamrecfevemsammemuewdanednammo'me
measnﬁbulghkmmslwmesreadow\evnsﬁsnmmbhbmmﬁquﬁymfvmmmdmmweswmem i and have that
Covid-19 is a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and as such, no adjustment has been made in respect of Covid-19.
However, any impact to goodwill and intangible assets, net pension labildy values and i in idizries will be refl in the financiat for the year ended 30 June 2020.
Effective May 4, 2020 The Ci y £ paper for the purpose of issuing short-term, unsecured Sterting-denominated aotes that are efigible for purchase under the Joint HM Treasury and
Bank of & Covid C Fa & Femymmwmmmbmmnmmmmmmhmmmonmmmwm of notes 1o the program on the fi
terms:
ssue Data Amount £m interest rate Matusity Date
07/05/2020 300.0 0.468% 17/0372021
03/06/2020 100.0 0.435% 120472021
11/06/2020 100.0 0.454% 26/04/2021
17/06/2020 100.0 0.433% 07/05/2021
No ather matesial events have since the of ial position date which would affect the financial statemnents of the Company or Group.

Page 45



